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FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o4 1o 5 1 2

RESULTS

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and

non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below:

e 3

2% 55 00 1 A B B4R B 2 SRR DL R E R
MEZE (ki85 F O B AR A S B R ) MBI F -

Year ended 31 March
BRE=A=1—HI4HE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
R4 | CBomE oS4 S48 —2 K
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T T#7 T#T T#7
REVENUE KA 7,968,813 5,511,537 5,079,222 5,577,514 3,705,241
Cost of sales 98 A (7,386,316)| (5,187,993) (4,764,334) (5324,291) (3,558,208)
Gross profit A 582,497 323,544 314,888 253,223 147,033
Other income and gains oAb A B M 25 49,275 49,357 12,109 2,405 24,802
Administrative expenses FTHCBE 32 (88,121) (87,707) (83,577) (86,847) (65,180)
Impairment on property, W3~ W A A
plant and equipment (199,043) - - - -
Finance costs EE N (29,049) (34,761) (24,508) (11,506) (8,350)
Share of profits and losses of WAl & A 3R AT
joint ventures 785 184 1,373 (1,355) 14,485
Share of profits and losses of JRE A% Wk A ) 4R A
associates 1,593 - - - -
Income tax expense A BB 3 (89,375) (45,728) (46,217) (33,040) (18,090)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A Bk A 228,562 204,889 174,068 122,880 94,700
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 3:fib 4 i J& 11
Other comprehensive loss that TS5 3 0 T i T 40
may be reclassified to profit or F I 2 g R
loss in subsequent periods (11,063) (7,597) (6,217) - -
Total comprehensive income BEA R H AL N
for the year attributable LNk
to owners of the parent 217,499 197,292 167,851 122,880 94,700
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FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 Yo 765 1 2
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION MR T
As at 31 March
R=H=+—H

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
CROHY | ZRONGE ZF=F ZFDITE ZFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x SRy T T T
Non-current assets B A 1,896,724 | 1,728,193 1,658,772  1,305917 1,278,964
Current assets W% R 3,381,869 3,177,454 2,967,709 2,620,491 1,785,361
Non-current liabilities Jhik o fE 18,496 1,872 490,940 494,199 486,071
Current liabilities W 3,525,032 3,286,209 2,615,267 2,009,786 1,228,711
NET ASSETS % as A 1,735,065 1,617,566 1,520,274 1,422,423 1,349,543
TOTAL EQUITY PR 2% 1,735,065 1,617,566 1,520,274 1,422,423 1,349,543

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS W Hs R BB
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
CRTHAE | DR UE RS SR OFE R CE
Earnings per share (HK cents) B R FE AR A (A4 ) 11.43 10.24 8.70 6.14 4.74
Dividend per share (HK cents) R R (AL 6.0 5.0 5.0 35 2.5
Current ratio e R 0.96 0.97 1.1 1.3 1.5
Net assets per share (HK$) BTG E (EIT) 0.87 0.81 0.76 0.71 0.68
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FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o4 1o 5 1 2

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue (HK$’million):

Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025
increased by 44.6% to HK$7,968,813,000 from
HK$5,511,537,000 for the year ended 31 March
2024.

Net profit for the year ended 31 March 2025
increased by 11.6% amounted to HK$228,562,000
(2024: HK$204,889,000).

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2025 amounted to HK11.43 cents (2024: HK10.24

cents).

Y 5 9 L

o WAWMBRE-RNWE=ZH=1—HILEE
195,511,537,000% s I 44.6% 8 2 =%
ZHEZAZ=Z4+—HIEFER7,968,813,000

o HWEFE _FEZAZ=T—HILEEN T
FI 54 11.6% % 228,562,000 76 (= F 10
4 1 204,889,00097C) ©

o BECFTHE=A=1+—HILFERTR
FEARBAN L5 1143840 (ZF WU 2 1024
Ailly) -

Profit for the year (HK$ million):

WA (EHEWIT) : FERER (FEBIT)
9000 250
8000
7000 200
6000
5000 150
4000 o
3000
2000 50
1000

0 0

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Total assets (HK$ million):
BEAE(EEEBT) :

6000

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

5000

4000
3000

2000

1000

0

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), 1

report the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025.

RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group was engaged in
building construction, repair, maintenance, alteration
and addition (“RMAA”) works, piling works and sales of
prefabricated construction units in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$7,968,813,000, representing an increase of
44.6% from HK$5,511,537,000 for the year ended 31 March
2024. Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024 amounted to HK$228,562,000 and HK$204,889,000
respectively, representing an increase of 11.6% during the
year. The profit for the year was not increasing at the same
pace as the revenue recorded for the year ended 31 March
2025 was mainly resulting from the downward adjustments
of the property market in Hong Kong, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of HK$199,043,000 of a leasehold land.
Excluding the impact of the impairment loss, the profit for
the year was amounted to HK$427,605,000, representing an
increase of 108.7% compared with the profit for the year ended
31 March 2024. The basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year was HK11.43 cents (2024: HK10.24 cents).

The net assets value attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 amounted to HK$1,735,065,000
(approximately HK$0.87 per share), representing an increase
of 7.3% from HK$1,617,566,000 (approximately HK$0.81 per
share) as at 31 March 2024.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EN 28
SO BN

ANERRLRTEERARAFT (TAAH] -
LI S B A ] > B (AR ) R (]
Fg(#EEa])  EMAEHEE_F L4
ZA=E+—HIRF R R4 -

T B AR E - AR R WA E TR
Mt - R BB R (MR ]) TR - T T

MEREZAE=ZA=Z+—HILEE » K4
e A % 7,968,813,000% 00 - B E _F 1Y
F=EZH=+—H R4 BE15,511,537,000 % T
Ma4.6% - ME R _LE=ZHA=ZF+—H A
ZZWFEZHZE+—H A5 W5 R 554
228,562,0009 76 & 204,889,000 G > > 4F 4 34 i
11.6% - REZF_HAE=ZHA=+—HILFE >
AR A AR REEWA R SR - FEEHREF
WS T > AR SRS — B I
E BE4H199,043,0009 G o IR I A MG 46 M s 2 -
AR AE BRI 427,605,000 00 - B E_F Y
FEZHZE4— H R4 A B N 108.7% o A
AEFE R B AR R A A 114330 (=% 2
A1 10.248) o

MR HEZHZ=Z1—H » KA A B 6 #
A REAY % B 1,735,065,000 ¥ G (48 %
A50.87IL) - BM_F_WA=ZH=Z4+—HH
1,617,566,000% 7C (£ #4145 0.8 15T ) B4 N 7.3%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

N E

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2024: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 5 September 2025, Friday. The proposed payment of the
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholder(s)”) at the forthcoming 2025
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2025.

Based on the 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
issue as of the date of approval of this annual report, the total
final dividend amounted to HK$120,000,000.

OUTLOOK

According to the 2025-26 Budget, the HKSAR Government
has identified sufficient land for meeting the supply target of
308,000 public housing units over the next 10 years. When
combined with Light Public Housing, the total public housing
supply over the next five years will reach 190,000 units, which
is about 80% higher than in the first five-year period of the

current government term.

The HKSAR Government is actively taking forward the
development of the Northern Metropolis which covers the
Yuen Long District and North District, including new towns
in Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long and Fanling/Sheung Shui,
various New Development Areas in different planning and
development stages and their neighboring areas, with a total
area of 30,000 hectares (about one third of the total area of
Hong Kong). The Large New Development Areas such as Kwu
Tung North/Fanling North, Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen, Yuen
Long South, San Tin Technopole (including the Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Park in the Loop) are
under construction. Additionally, relevant planning studies
for new land development projects, including New Territories
North New Town, Ngau Tam Mei, Lau Fau Shan and Ma Tso

Lung area, are in progress.

JBe B
EHAEERRKERREEA=F—HILE
BErP mF I RAUA I H QRIS BIA A A
Ji5e B ik g B SR 3 A J0 B B B 9 B 6.0 98
il (= PG4 5091l - HEIRSE Z A B B
TR A B R SR AT B R T IR AR B B ROB AR R
B (M HOB AR 6 ) A A W] B (B )
#EAE > Jr ATARE > BERIN BB A T R A —F
THEZAZET AR R -

WA AR E R H AR A A AT SRR
£ 2,000,000,000 B # & > K B B B 4B H A
120,000,000%# 5T ©

Tiij B¢

W% T - TN B AR o IR BN
E e 4 Hb > DLRE B R 2 4 308,00011 2 2
5= WAL A o A AR R4
4 2 78 55 J2 0 B JRE 31 42 190,000 181 B4 » AR
JeE BORF AT A% 1A R 4 T R B £080% o

Y I TR L R e 2 0 A o D 4 9 e - CIL D
7 16 200 W I R AL s - SRR~ T T R
B KT B > DL 2 MR A I AR ) % %
e RS B F) S 3% o i B L0 M [ > R THI R =
A A FBEEEN =02 —) o wiRdL 8
BAL - YRS BER ~ TR ~ BT R (B
T 5 [ 1 8 TR AR SR [ ) S5 KT 8 e [
N T W Be o BbAh - BT RLRT T 8L - R - W
T L1 B G T [ S5 - b 8 i L H B IE 4T B
LB F S o
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These initiatives underscore a highly promising medium to
long-term outlook for the construction industry in Hong Kong.
The HKSAR Government’s proactive approach to addressing
housing demands and expediting construction processes
demonstrates its commitment to meeting public housing needs
and ensuring sustainable urban development. These efforts will
drive growth, enhance stability and foster a positive future for

the construction sector.

The Group will benefit from the HKSAR Government’s
policies and is expected to have more opportunities to secure

public works and housing projects in the coming years.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our
gratitude and sincere appreciation to all management and
employees of the Group for their hard work and dedication, as

well as to all shareholders for their continuous support.

Sincerely,

YAU Kwok Fai
Chairman
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EN 28

LM 25 4 34 B 7 98 04 S 4 v R T SR I 42
1BL o A I BT A M S 55 95 SR SIE A R e O A
M RR BN T AL R A B R - DL
A AT B R WY R o 8 L5 A B i
AR > InsREERE Pk - S 2 I 3 W A IE T Y
BERRATE o

ACEE ) 3H 32 55 A I BORT R BOSR - NI YT
WA AR R A TR KB RIEA -

BeAR o A N GE AR o o A AR I A A B S
R H RS BT ELRR > DA BB IR B SCH
BAF OIS !

[l

e B e
E
LR TR B A

> “FREANHZTAH
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SuMMARY OF SUBSTANTIAL CONTRACTS ON HAND

FATFHAHBERE

At 31 March 2025, the management estimates the gross RI-FZHAEZHA=Z+—H > FHEMAFTTERS
contract values and outstanding values of the substantial  #JZ & &8 18 88 81 B AR 58 B & A A8 4 ) B 3% 7
contracts that were awarded to (i) subsidiaries of the  (i)AS%E H & M & A =] B9 £7196.2 748 # 50 £ 158.90
Group amounted to approximately HK$19,627 million and #7065 X (i) AL H M G2 EB M A166.56f5 %
HK$15,890 million, respectively; and (ii) joint operations of ~ JG/&120.01fE¥# ¢ - WEFH K FHEEG LMW E

the Group amounted to HK$16,656 million and HK$12,001  BI&FIanF -
million, respectively. Details of these substantial contracts on

hand are set out below:

Building Construction Projects

B g H

Contracts Awarded to Subsidiaries

BYWEA AL

Construction of Public Housing Development at Wang Chiu Road Phase 2

BB T A8 R R R AR R AR

Public Rental Housing Development at Ting On Street, Kwun Tong

BE R 2 A AR R ER

Construction of Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 109 and Demolition for
Sui Fai Factory Estate, Kwai On Factory Estate, and Wang Cheong Factory Estate with
Decontamination Works

SR 55 109 [ A8 by F2 % i it ) st 8 7 S RORE TR B
R TR e % B TROR IR 80 B Bis AR

3-Year District Term Contract for the Maintenance, Improvement and Vacant Flat Refurbishment for
Kowloon West and Sai Kung for 2023/2026

2023 % 20264F BV JUHE Je v B — PR ~ Wi I 22 L LA BIORT AR 3 4R 43 e 15 4

Construction of Public Housing Development at Wah King Street, Pok Fu Lam South

PRSI NGE 3 YA IR b g < M

Construction of Public Housing Development at Wu Shan Road, Tuen Mun

o P L B N R S TR

Data Centre Development at FSSTL No. 268, Fanling

4 LK Hi B 5 2. 68 5% A BB vp 0 B

Construction of Public Housing Development at Fanling North Area 15 East Phase 2

WAL S 15 I R A 0 A e S B e R A 2R TR

Construction of Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 42 Phases 1 and 2

WA 421 58— W B 58 I e B R B R B S AR

Design and Construction of Public Housing Development at Choi Shun Street, Sheung Shui

weat Rl EOKRE A A8 B Rt e 5 TR

Contract value

AR
HK$ million
B BT

1,293

596

1,437

404

1,177

2,738

586

2,546

5,400

3,450
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SUMMARY OF SUBSTANTIAL CONTRACTS ON HAND

Building Construction Projects

B R H

Contracts Awarded to Joint Operations

BYPHBEBHHEH

Design and Construction of Joint-user Government Office Building in Area 67
Tseung Kwan O

T B S A BB 67 i V) TR Tk T 2 KA

Construction of New Territories East Cultural Centre in Area 11, Fanling

EEANTE TR S (A iy N

Design and Construction of Light Public Housing at Tuen Mun Area 54 and
at Sheung On Street/Sheung Ping Street, Chai Wan

RRT B i P S 54 I I SE 1B R PR I A A B

Design and Construction of Light Public Housing at Lok On Pai, Siu Lam

went SO MBS Z B T A R

Design and Construction of Joint-User Complex with Market in Area 67, Tseung

Kwan O

B B s 1 T WRLAE 67 I P B A KA (B e i)
Construction of Amenity Complex in Area 103, Ma On Shan
PS8 L 56 103 [ A A sl R M e 2 TR

Design and Construction of a Community Health Centre Building in Shek Kip Mei

BRnt T A e R A I e v KA
Notes:

1. Project was awarded to ABLE — PAUL Y. JOINT VENTURE, an il
unincorporated body which 51% interest of this joint operation is
attributable to the Group.

2. Project was awarded to Build King — ABLE Joint Venture, an 2.
unincorporated body which 30% interest of this joint operation is
attributable to the Group.

3. Projects were awarded to Able — Chun Wo Joint Venture, an 3.
unincorporated body which 85% interest of this joint operation is
attributable to the Group.

4. Project was awarded to Paul Y. — Able (TKO67) Joint Venture, an 4.
unincorporated body which 40% interest of this joint operation is
attributable to the Group.

5. Project was awarded to Square — Able Joint Venture, an unincorporated 5.
body which 30% interest of this joint operation is attributable to the
Group.

6.  Project was awarded to Able — Square Joint Venture, an unincorporated 6.

body which 67% interest of this joint operation is attributable to the
Group.

For identification purposes only *

ERFHA B

Contract value

Eeg okt
HKS$ million Notes
B & Mt
: 3,587 (Note 1)
(KtiEn)
3,727 (Note 2)
(MtiE2)
2.420 (Note 3)
(MtiE3)
1,550 (Note 3)
(MtiE3)
2,200 (Note 4)
(MtiE4)
1,800 (Note 5)
(KtiEs)
1,372 (Note 6)
(MtiEs)

Wi -

H 22 PR — DR £ 7o+ (I Jad 0k P Ay B ) e - AR
A AN % L TR AR 1 S 19 HE SR ©

H ) e — 2 AR (I e Je vk o [ ) Rt - AR
B2 B % 3 1R BR300 M 2R

F 2 PR — P A g 2 (Sl o o T vy B i) AR > AR
AF B % 3G ) 7 PR 85 90 MR ©

FH AR 2E — AR (TKO67) £ 8+ (X e i 2 1 vy I )
AREE > AR AN IE R R B 40% HERE o

BRI A — 2R (I I e vk P 1y ) Rt - AR
B2 B % 36 1R R 3 0% M 2R

HI 2 PR — 0 2 7 Ol 9 o v P Fy P ) Rt - AR
A BN % 3G ) K87 R 6T 90 MR ©

gk Y
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LicENCES AND QUALIFICATIONS

Jo TS e A%

The following table summarises
and qualifications obtained by m

March 2025:

the details of major licences
embers of the Group as at 31

TRBUER ZFZHE=ZH =1 —H o REER
B AR B R SR R B AR Z R

Authorities

BB

Licences or Qualifications

it 8 B A

Group
AL

Able Engineering Company Limited %4 TH4 WA H

Works Branch,

Development Bureau

B )R THR

Buildings C (confirmed)
jeg 3 7 (W2
Plumbing Installation II (probation)
KEHKE G )
Repair and Restoration of Historic Buildings —

— For works related to ‘Western Style Buildings’ only
Hets R A1 A TR s et — SRR B [ il 3 1 B iy A2
Turn-key Interior Design and Fitting-out Works I

ZBEN R LS TR

Housing Authority

Building (New Works)

NW?2 (confirmed)

FREZEH® B TE) NW2 (%)
Building (Maintenance) M2 (probation)
(R M2 GGRUATHT)
Decoration Contractors —
HAE TR Y
Buildings Department General Building Contractors =
B5E — e SR R
Site Formation Works —
Mo PR TR
Foundation Works —
L TR
Housing Society Building Works List 2
B B TR =
Electrical and Mechanical Registered Electrical Contractors (“Electricity Ordinance”) =
Services Department A S A R (76 k) 1)
WEILRE
Water Supplies Department Registered Plumbing Contractor Provisional
KBE ol k7K W 7 T B
Able Building Construction Limited ZfE&%%E A A )
Works Branch, Buildings C (probation)
Development Bureau R P G
BleR LM
Buildings Department General Building Contractors =
B5E — e SR R
Housing Authority Building (New Works) NW?2 (probation)
FREZE® B T) NW2 (GUHB)

Able Contractors Limited ZAREEA AW

Housing Authority

Decoration Contractors

BREERE

s R




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED ZR TRREZERAERAR | 13

L1CENCES AND (QUALIFICATIONS

Jol RS e B A%

Authorities Licences or Qualifications Group

B it B8 % Y A AL

CWEF Piling & Civil Engineering Company Limited BF3TH LA TRAHR A

Works Branch, Roads and Drainage A (Probation)
Development Bureau B % BOR T B GRE)
R R TER Site Formation C (Probation)
iR 3 7 G
Land Piling II
+H AT Hs

Landslip Preventive/Remedial Works to Slopes/Retaining Walls Confirmed
FHEE 4 0 9 1k LR AR, e Al AR {5

Buildings Department General Building Contractor —
BF%E — e SR R
Foundation Works —
Henk TR
Site Formation Works —
P8 TR
Ground Investigation Field Works S
Bl 5 - ) TR

Demolition Works =

PR THR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR ks B oy B

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Group was engaged as a main
contractor in building construction works in Hong Kong. As of
31 March 2025, the Group’s substantial contracts on hand were
mainly related to building construction works from the public

sector.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$7,968,813,000, representing an increase of
44.6% from HK$5,511,537,000 for the year ended 31 March
2024. Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024 amounted to HK$228,562,000 and HK$204,889,000
respectively, representing an increase of 11.6% during the
year. The profit for the year was not increasing at the same
pace as the revenue recorded for the year ended 31 March
2025 was mainly resulting from the downward adjustments
of the property market in Hong Kong, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of HK$199,043,000 of a leasehold land.
Excluding the impact of the impairment loss, the profit for
the year was amounted to HK$427,605,000, representing an
increase of 108.7% compared with the profit for the year ended
31 March 2024. The basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year was HK11.43 cents (2024: HK10.24 cents).

The net assets value attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 amounted to HK$1,735,065,000
(approximately HK$0.87 per share), representing an increase
of 7.3% from HK$1,617,566,000 (approximately HK$0.81 per
share) as at 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2024: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 5 September 2025, Friday. The proposed payment of the
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholder(s)”) at the forthcoming 2025
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2025.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market Review

Supported by the HKSAR Government’s commitment in
increasing in supply for the number of public housing units,
the construction of Light Public Housing Units and the
commencement of large-scale infrastructure projects such
as “The Northern Metropolis”, tendering opportunities of
construction contracts from the public sector in the coming

years will be sustainable and stable.

The Group’s performance

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$7,968,813,000 (2024: HK$5,511,537,000),
representing an increase of 44.6% from that of last year. The
increase in revenue was primarily attributed to the progress of

the projects as scheduled.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin increased from 5.9%
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to 7.3% for the year ended
31 March 2025. The increase was primarily attributed to the
completion of a few projects, where the economic benefits
expected to be received exceeded the estimated cost to
complete certain contract works, and therefore, a reversal of
provision for contract works for certain projects was recorded.
In addition, under the adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, the gross profit margins of the
Group’s individual contract works projects over different
reporting periods would not remain constant at the overall
gross profit margin of that project but would fluctuate over
different reporting periods, depending on the actual revenue
certified and costs incurred for the specific construction works

performed during the period.
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Building Construction Works
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the following substantial

contracts were awarded to the Group:

e Construction of Public Housing Development at Fanling
North Area 15 East Phase 2

¢ Construction of Public Housing Development at Tung
Chung Area 42 Phases 1 and 2

¢ Design and Construction of Public Housing Development
at Choi Shun Street, Sheung Shui

¢ Design and Construction of Joint-User Complex with
Market in Area 67, Tseung Kwan O of which the Group
has 40% interest

e  Construction of Amenity Complex in Area 103, Ma On
Shan of which the Group has 30% interest

¢  Design and Construction of a Community Health Centre
Building in Shek Kip Mei of which the Group has 67%

interest

The Group completed the following substantial contract during
the year ended 31 March 2025:

e  Construction of Public Housing Development at Kai Tak
Site 2B2

e Design and Construction of Redevelopment of Queen
Mary Hospital, Phase 1 — Main Works at Pok Fu Lam Road
of which the Group has 30% interest

e Construction of Public Housing Development at Yip
Wong Road Phase 1 and Phase 2, Tuen Mun

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains mainly attributed from interest income
from banks. During the year under review, the Group recorded
other income and gains of approximately HK$49,275,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2025, which was broadly unchanged
compared to HK$49,357,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased from HK$87,707,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2024 to HK$88,121,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2025. The increase in administrative expenses

in the year was mainly due to an increase in directors’ bonuses.

Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment

Due to downward adjustments of the property market in
Hong Kong, the Group recorded an impairment loss of
HK$199,043,000 (2024: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2025
in respect of the leasehold land of an office building under

construction.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased from HK$34,761,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2024 to HK$29,049,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2025. The decrease in finance costs by 16.4%
was mainly benefiting from repayment of a term loan during the

year.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures

The share of profits of joint ventures amounted to HK$785,000
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$184,000), which
was solely arisen from the share of results of Gold Victory
Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries of which the Group has 50%
equity interest.

Share of Profits and Losses of Associates

The share of profits of associates amounted to HK$1,593,000
(2024: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2025 representing a
net result of 50% equity interest shared from Synergy Materials
Limited and its subsidiaries.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased from HK$45,728,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2024 to HK$89,375,000 for the year ended 31
March 2025. The tax expenses increased by 95.4% while profit
before tax increased by 26.9%, the discrepancy was mainly
due to a non-deductible impairment loss of approximately
HK$199,043,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 March
2025.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners
of the parent of the Company increased by 11.6% from
HK$204,889,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
HK$228,562,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary shares.
The Group mainly rely on its internally generated capital and
bank borrowings to finance its business. The total equity of the
Group as at 31 March 2025 was HK$1,735,065,000 (31 March
2024: HK$1,617,566,000).

The Group monitors capital structure using net gearing ratio,
which is measured as interest-bearing bank loans less cash and
bank balances, divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent of the Company. As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s net
gearing ratio was nil (31 March 2024: nil).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by
16.2% from HK$2,077,918,000 as at 31 March 2024 to
HK$1,741,032,000 at 31 March 2025 was mainly due to
repayment of a term loan. The current ratio maintained steadily
at 0.96 as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 0.97). The result
of current ratio was primarily due to redevelopment of the site
at No.7 Lai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(the “Site”), certain amount of cash were consumed. However,
the Board considers the current ratio to be at a healthy level,
especially given the Group’s net cash position. Current ratio
is measured at total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

The Group’s banking facilities, comprising primarily bank
loans, bank overdrafts and performance bonds, amounted to
HK$2,124,200,000 as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
HK$2,421,200,000), of which HK$1,554,825,000 (31 March
2024: HK$1,442,290,000) was unutilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest and Foreign Exchange Exposure

At 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group’s bank
borrowings were all denominated in Hong Kong dollars and on
a floating rate basis. The Group’s bank accounts were mainly
operated with principal bankers in Hong Kong. The interest
rates of these bank accounts are determined by reference to the

respective banks’ offer rates.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Chinese
Mainland. Entities within the Group are exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that

is not the entities’ functional currency.

For the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
the Group did not engage in any interest rates and currency
hedging or speculation activities. The Group closely monitors
and manages its exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations and
will consider engaging relevant hedging arrangement when
appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$1,788,769,000 as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
HK$1,612,720,000). The increase in property, plant and
equipment was mainly due to the construction cost incurred for

the redevelopment of the Site during the year.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
The balance represented the cash values of life insurance
policies acquired for an Executive Director and a senior

management of the Group at respective years end.
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Accounts Receivable

The Group’s accounts receivable represented the receivables
for contract works in relation to completed or on-going
contract works projects. Accounts receivable represents
progress billing of work performed and the progress payment
certificates issued by and received from our customers. The
level of accounts receivable is principally affected by our work
progress and the amount of the progress payment certificate
certified by and received from our customers up to the end of
the financial period. 100% of the accounts receivable as at
31 March 2025 was subsequently settled by 13 May 2025 (31
March 2024: approximately 100% was subsequently settled by
14 June 2024).

Contract Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the contract assets mainly represented
retention receivables of HK$586,886,000 (31 March 2024:
HK$445,540,000) and unbilled revenue of HK$661,135,000
(31 March 2024: HK$368,620,000). Retention receivables
represented the retention monies required by customers to

secure our Group’s due performance of the contracts.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the prepayments, other receivables
and other assets mainly represented the prepaid insurance for
contract works projects, construction waste disposal deposits
and rental and utilities deposit. The decrease in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets was mainly due to the

repayment of loan to a joint operation partner during the year.

Other Payables and Accruals

As of 31 March 2025, the current and non-current balances of
other payables and accruals amounted to HK$1,462,571,000
(31 March 2024: HK$1,716,194,000) and HK$16,094,000
(31 March 2024: nil), respectively, which mainly represented
provision for contract works costs, staff costs payable,
construction costs payable of the Site and the lease liabilities
recognised. The decrease in other payables and accruals
during the year was mainly due to the decrease in provision
for contract works costs of HK$423,024,000. The decrease was
primarily attributed to the completion of a few projects, where
the economic benefits is probable, and therefore, a reversal of

provision for contract works for certain projects was recorded.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s bank loans with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$6,008,000 (2024: HK$2,700,000)
were secured by the assignment of the Group’s financial
benefits under certain contract work, which include unbilled
revenue and retention receivables of HK$20,078,000 (2024:
HK$164,210,000) and HK$1,583,000 (2024: HK$50,679,000),

respectively.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s bank loans with an aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$6,008,000 (2024: HK$2,700,000)
were secured by certain deposits accounts maintained with the
relevant banks as continuing security for the obligations of the
Group.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,340,000,000 (2024: HK$1,235,822,000), the equity
interest of a subsidiary of the Group and the floating charge
over all the assets and undertakings of a subsidiary of the
Group, were pledged to secure a bank facility granted to the
Group. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the relevant
bank loan was fully repaid and the bank facility was expired,
but the related pledge has not been released, subject to
administrative procedures.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note
34 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments are set out in note

35 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS ON CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any significant investment plan held
as at 31 March 2025. The Group is currently investigating and
evaluating different investment opportunities.
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FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS WITH LANON
DEVELOPMENT

On 18 February 2022, the Company (for and on behalf of
itself and any of its subsidiaries) and Lanon Development
Limited (“Lanon Development”, a connected company
controlled by a close associate of Mr. NGAI Chun Hung)
entered into a framework subcontracting agreement and
a framework contracting agreement, (collectively the
“Framework Agreements”, as amended and supplemented
by the supplemental subcontracting agreement and the
supplemental contracting agreement, respectively, on 20 May
2022), pursuant to which members of the Group and Lanon
Development could engage the counterparty from time to time
in respect of the provision of contracting services as specified in

the respective agreements for the period up to 31 March 2025.

Each of the Framework Agreements constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“The Stock Exchange”). The Framework Agreements and
the respective transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders by way of poll on 9
June 2022.

For further details of the Framework Agreements, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 18 February 2022,
20 May 2022 and 9 June 2022, and the circular of the Company
dated 24 May 2022.

The Board believes that the entering into the Framework
Agreements could (i) expand and diversify the Group’s
capabilities as a contractor or a sub-contractor and (ii) further
broaden the Group’s potential customer-base which could
be reached by cooperating with Lanon Development, either
as a subcontractor or as a contractor, under the Framework

Agreements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS WITH WHSE

On 29 August 2024, the Company (for and on behalf of itself
and any of its subsidiaries) and Wing Hong Shun Enterprises
Limited (“WHSE”, a company controlled by Mr. NGAI Chun
Hung) entered into a framework subcontracting agreement and
a framework contracting agreement, (collectively the “WHSE
Framework Agreements”), pursuant to which any members of
the Group and WHSE could engage the counterparty from time
to time in respect of the provision of contracting services as

specified in the respective agreements for the period up to 31

March 2027.

Each of the Framework Agreements constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The WHSE Framework Agreements and
the respective transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders by way of poll on 29
November 2024.

For further details of the WHSE Framework Agreements, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29 August
2024 and 29 November 2024, and the circular of the Company
dated 25 October 2024.

The Group believes that with the continued support from
Hong Kong Government, the medium to long term outlook
for the construction industry is positive and sustainable and
there will be increasing demand for prefabricated components
under the trend of adoption of modular integrated construction
(MiC). As a result, it is currently a good opportunity for the
Company to collaborate with WHSE to broaden its business
scope in MiC field, to expand and diversify its capabilities in
providing prefabricated-related services as a main contractor
or sub-contractor of civil engineering works as well as where
the construction industry in Hong Kong shows consistent
increase in the number of construction works with the HKSAR
Government that adopt the use of MiC. It is also beneficial
for the Group to enhance and expand customer base in related

areas to maximize the utilization of its factory.
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B PR ks B oy B

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 March 2025, the Group employed about 630 full-
time employees (31 March 2024: 468) in Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance and work experience and with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. On top of the
regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share options
may be granted to senior management and staff members
by reference to the Group’s performance, specific project’s
performance as well as the individual employee’s performance.
Staff benefits include pension scheme contribution, medical
insurance, incentive travel, subsidies for education and training

programmes, etc..

At the AGM of the Company held on 31 August 2018,
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
considered and approved. The purposes of the Scheme are to
provide incentives for the directors and fulltime employees
of the members of the Group to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its Shares for benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme
provides the Group with a flexible means of either retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to participants of the Scheme. From the
date of adoption of the Scheme and up to 31 March 2025, the
Company did not grant any share options under the Scheme
and no equity-settled share option expense was charged to the

profit or loss.
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B1oGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai, aged 59, joined the Group in 1996, has
been an Executive Director of the Company since July 2016
and be appointed as the Chairman of the board in September
2022. Mr. YAU is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. YAU assumed the role of the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company from 29 August 2023 to 31 March
2024. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. YAU is responsible for management of
the Board, formulating policy and overall development of the
Group.

Mr. YAU has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Mr. YAU obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Civil Engineering (First Class Honours) from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (“PolyU”)) in 1990, a diploma from the Imperial
College London of the United Kingdom (“UK”) in 1991 and
a Master of Science degree with distinction in Structural
Steel Design from the University of London of the UK in
1991. Mr. YAU is a Member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (“HKIE”), the Institution of Civil Engineers and
the Institution of Structural Engineers of the UK. He is also a
Registered Professional Engineer (Civil and Structural) and a
Registered Structural Engineer under the Buildings Ordinance
of Hong Kong.

Mr. YAU and Mr. NGAI Chun Hung are brothers-in-law.
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Mr. LEE Hang Wing James, aged 55, joined the Group in
January 2024 and was appointed as Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
1 April 2024. Mr. LEE is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for administration of the

Group’s operations.

Mr. LEE has over 30 years of experience in construction,
project management, property development, architectural
practice, corporate management and construction innovation
technologies. Mr. LEE obtained a Bachelor of Science
(Architecture) and a Bachelor of Architecture from The
University of Sydney, Australia in 1991 and 1994 respectively.
He is an Authorized Person (List of Architects) under the
Buildings Ordinance of Hong Kong, a Registered Architect
under Architects Registration Ordinance of Hong Kong, a BIM
Asset Information Professional and a BIM Project Information
Professional (BSI, UK), a Fellow Member of Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers, a Member of the Chartered
Association of Building Engineers, a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, an Ordinary Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Real Estate Administrators, and a Professional
Member of Hong Kong Interior Design Association.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. LEE held various positions
in construction company, real estate developers, bank, hotel &
investment company and architectural practices. This included
his position as architectural assistant in various companies in
Australia and Hong Kong (1990-1995); associate (architect),
construction manager, investor relations manager and project
manager in several architectural practices and enterprises in
Hong Kong (1995-2012). Mr. LEE also served as a deputy
general manager of the Corporate Services Department at Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited which is a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02388)
(2012-2014). Subsequently, from January 2014 to March 2016,
Mr. LEE acted as a senior deputy project director (on-site) of
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (“Paul Y”), which primarily
provides full-fledged engineering construction and project
management and property service. He was then appointed as

the chief executive officer and an executive director of Paul Y

for the period from March 2016 to December 2023.
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Mr. LEE was appointed as the First Vice-President of the Hong
Kong Construction Association of its 71st and 72nd Council
(2021-2023) and acted as a member of the Building Contractors
Committee and Planning Sub-Committee of the Land and
Development Advisory Committee, under the Development
Bureau of The Government of the HKSAR (2021-2023), a
board member of the Construction Industry Council (2021-
2023) and was awarded the Outstanding People — MiC
Advocator by the Construction Industry Council (2022).
Mr. LEE was also a board member for the Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board under Labour Department (2022-
2023), a member of the Building, Civil Engineering and Built
Environment Training Board for the Vocational Training
Council (2021-2023).

In addition, Mr. LEE currently serves in various roles within
the industry and the society. He is a Board Member of the
Construction Innovation and Technology Application Centre,
a Committee Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects
Professional Assessment Committee, an Election Committee
Subsector Voter under the Real Estate and Construction
Sub-Sector and a Member of Management Committee of the
Centre for Innovation in Construction and Infrastructure
Development of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEE is
also a member of the Fourteenth Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangzhou Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(“INED(s)”)

Prof. KO Jan Ming, aged 82, has been an INED of the
Company since February 2021. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice to our Board. He is currently
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Prof. KO has over 50 years of experience in structural
engineering and industrial collaboration. He was the former
Vice President and former Chair Professor of Structural
Engineering of PolyU, and currently an Emeritus Professor
at PolyU and Senior Advisor of its Research Institute for
Sustainable Urban Development. Prof. KO holds a bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering and a doctorate degree in
Structural Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
(“HKU”). He is a Fellow of each of HKIE, the Institution
of Structural Engineers of the UK, the American Society of
Civil Engineers and the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering
Sciences.
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Prof. KO was presented The President's Award of HKIE in
2006 and was inducted into the Hall of Fame of HKIE in
2010. He was presented The HKIE Gold Medal in 2011. In
the same year, Prof. KO was also presented The Aftab Mufti
Medal by the International Society for Structural Health
Monitoring of Intelligent Infrastructures in recognition of his
lifetime achievement in civil structural health monitoring. In
November 2016, Prof. KO was conferred the Honorary Doctor
of Engineering by PolyU in recognition of his distinguished

accomplishments and contributions.

Prof. KO was an INED of Vantage International (Holdings)
Limited (“Vantage”, a company incorporated in Bermuda and
which shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange (stock code: 15) from 8 September 2000 to 22
October 2020, ceased to be the intermediate holding company
of the Company on 19 November 2020) from July 2000 to
October 2020.

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert, aged 64, has been an INED of
the Company since February 2021. He is responsible for
supervising and providing independent advice to our Board. He
is currently the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. LEE is a registered dentist in Hong Kong. He completed
his undergraduate training in dentistry at the University of
Adelaide, Australia. He then received a Commonwealth
Scholarship Medical Award to pursuit his postgraduate training
at the Institute of Dental Surgery, University of London, UK.
He attained Fellowship of the Royal Australasian College of
Dental Surgeons by examination and is an inaugural Fellow
of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. He was also awarded
Life Fellowship by the Royal Australasian College of Dental
Surgeons in 2022 in recognition of his exceptional contribution
of service to the Royal Australasian College of Dental

Surgeons.
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Dr. LEE was the Director and Honorary Treasurer of the Royal
Australasian College of Dental Surgeons, the Deputy Chairman
of the Interchange Association of Dental Medicine among
Shanghai, Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan and a member of the
Editorial Board of the journal of “Hong Kong Medical Diary”.
Dr. LEE had served as a Senior Dental Officer of Department of
Health of the government of Hong Kong (the “Government”),
an Honorary Consultant Dental Service (Paediatric Dentistry)
of the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong and a Part-time
Clinical Lecturer in the Faculty of Dentistry of HKU.

Dr. LEE was a Non-executive Director of Vantage from

September 2016 to October 2020.

Dr. LI Yok Sheung, aged 72, has been an INED of the
Company since January 2017. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice to our Board. He is currently
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. LI has over 30 years of experience in civil engineering
and education. He graduated from HKU with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Engineering in November 1975 and a Doctor
of Philosophy degree in November 1980. Dr. LI joined PolyU
as lecturer in September 1984 and was appointed as the Chair
Professor of Coastal and Environmental Engineering in January
2000. From July 2000 to July 2007, he also served as the Head of
the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering (renamed
as Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering in
2012) of PolyU. Dr. LI retired from the position of Chair
Professor in June 2013 and was appointed as Advisor to Head of
Civil and Environmental Engineering from September 2013 to
August 2018.

Dr. LI is a Registered Professional Engineer. He is also a Fellow
of the HKIE since September 1997. Dr. LI served on the
publications committee of the HKIE between 2002 and 2008
and was the chairman of such committee from 2005 to 2008.
He was a member of the Structural Engineers Registration
Committee Panel under the Buildings Department in 2004
and 2005. He was appointed as an independent Reviewer by
the then Territory Development Department for the Central
Reclamation Phase III Project in 2003.
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Ms. MAK Suk Hing, aged 72, has been an INED of the
Company since January 2017. She is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice to our Board. She is
currently a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Ms. MAK has over 30 years of experience in education and
management. She graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (“CUHK”) with a Bachelor of Science degree
in October 1975 and obtained a diploma in Education in
December 1980. From 1975 to 1997, Ms. MAK served as
the assistant education officer, education officer and senior
education officer for Education Bureau. She was the principal
of Tai Po Government Secondary School from 1997 to 2000
and the principal of South Tuen Mun Government Secondary
School from 2000 to 2008. She was a committee member
of the School Management Committee of the Clementi
Secondary School from 2011 to 2013. From November 2013 to
August 2015, Ms. MAK was an INED of Excel Development
(Holdings) Limited (a company which shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange, had its name changed
since 16 January 2017; stock code: 1372). She was also a
committee member of New Territories East Region of the Scout
Association of Hong Kong until 2017.

Ms. MAK served as the assessor for Needs Analysis for Aspiring
Principals Programme in the CUHK over 20 years. She is also
a director and the Treasurer of Rural Training College Alumni
Association Limited.

Mr. MONG Chan, aged 76, has been an INED of the Company
since February 2021. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board. He is currently
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Mr. MONG has over 40 years of experience in financial and
cost management, accounting, general management and
information technology. Mr. MONG obtained a Bachelor of
Science (Hons) degree from CUHK in 1971 and a Master of
Philosophy degree in Engineering from HKU in 1982. He is
a Certified Practising Accountant of the Certified Practising
Accountant Australia (CPA Australia) since 1991, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) since 1984 and an associate of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants since 1977.

Mr. MONG had previously joined the Hong Kong Civil
Service as an Executive Officer and was a Chief Treasury
Accountant when he left the Government in 1984. He had 13
years of service in various Government departments, including
Treasury, Government Secretariat and Public Works, and had
gained experience in the areas of management, accounting and
budgeting. Mr. MONG also had overseas working experience,
including one year in the HM Treasury in London, the UK and

more than seven years in Australia.

Mr. MONG was the Associate Director of Finance of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (1992-
1997), the Director of Finance (1997-2007) and the Associated
Vice President (2003-2007) of PolyU and the Vice President
(Administration) and Secretary to Council of the Hong Kong
Institute of Education (currently known as The Education
University of Hong Kong) (2007-2014). Mr. MONG had also
served as a Government representative on the Council of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as
HKICPA) (1982-1984) and the Accountancy Training Board
of Vocational Training Council (1982-1983), and a member
of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) (2006-
2011). Mr. MONG was also the company secretary (2011-
2018) and the Chairman of the Board of Management (2018-
2021) of Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited. He
was also a Senior Advisor to the President of the Hong Kong
Nang Yan College of Higher Education (2021) and a Visiting
Professor (2022).
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Mr. MONG has retired from his full-time job in 2014 and is
currently serving voluntarily as a Director of the Causeway Bay
Kai-Fong Welfare Advancement Association, a school manager
of two kindergartens in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and an
external Non-executive member of the Fund Management

Committee for the Faculty of Construction and Environment

Education and Research Fund of PolyU.

Mr. MONG was an INED of Vantage from May 2019 to
October 2020.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung, aged 62, joined the Group in
1996, is the controlling shareholder of the Company. He
was the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company from July 2016 to August 2022 and also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company
from February 2017 to August 2022. Mr. NGALI has been re-
designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company from
September 2022 to March 2024, and he is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. NGAI has over 25 years
of experience in the construction industry. He is responsible for

operational support of contract works.

Mr. NGALI has been also the chairman of the board of directors
and an Executive Director of Vantage since July 2000.

Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU Kwok Fai are brothers-in-law.

Mr. YAM Kui Hung, aged 66, joined the Group in February
1996 and is a director of a major subsidiary of the Group. Mr.
YAM was also an Executive Director of the Company from
September 2016 to February 2020. Mr. YAM is primarily
responsible for quality assessment, project risk management and
internal audit of the Group.

Mr. YAM has over 40 years of experience in the construction
industry. He obtained a higher certificate in Building Studies
from PolyU in November 1982 and a postgraduate diploma in
Construction Management from the Construction Industry
Training Authority in Hong Kong in October 1989. He is a
corporate member of the HKIE.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen, aged 53, joined the Group in
September 2003. He served as an Executive Director of the
Company from September 2016 to August 2023 and also held
the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Company from
February 2020 to August 2023. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for
implementing and reporting to the Board on the Group’s
strategy, project estimation, project sub-contracting and

procurement management of the Group.

Mr. CHEUNG has over 25 years of experience in the
construction industry. He obtained a bachelor degree in
Quantity Surveying from University of Greenwich, the UK in
July 1998 and a higher diploma in Building Surveying from City
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. LAU Chi Fai, Daniel, aged 56, joined the Group in
November 2005. He served as an Executive Director of
the Company from September 2016 to March 2025. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
LAU is responsible for project management and contract

administration work of the Group.

Mr. LAU has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. He obtained a bachelor degree in Construction
Management from South Bank University of the UK in July
1993 and a higher diploma in Building Technology and
Management from the PolyU in November 1991. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.
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Corporate governance is the system by which a company is
directed and controlled. The board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Director(s)”) of Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and has developed
a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows
management to respond to the strategic directions approved
by the Board. This report describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices and structures that were in place during
the financial year ended 31 March 2025, with specific reference
to the principles and guidelines of the “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. In developing and
reviewing its corporate governance policies and practices, the
Company has sought to adopt a balanced approach. The Board
believes that a well- balanced corporate governance system
enables the Company to achieve business excellence and fulfill

the Company’s mission.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2025.
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THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company, and the Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs and overseeing the
achievement of strategic plans to enhance Shareholders’ value.
The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function
as required under the CG Code. The Board is also responsible
for reviewing from time to time, and at least annually, the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and ensures adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, especially for the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Board is responsible for all major aspects of the Company’s

affairs, which includes, among others:

e formulating key policy matters, overall strategic plans
and directions, and objectives of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”);

e monitoring and conducting periodically evaluation of the
performance of the management of the Group;

e appointing members and chairman to the Board and the
Board’s committees;

e shaping and monitoring the corporate culture, setting
long-term strategic objectives, policies and directions of
the Company;

® implementing and monitoring an effective framework
and systems of risk management and internal control,
including material risks relating to environmental, social
and governance;

®  monitoring material transactions (including, in particular,
those which may involve conflicts of interest);

e approving interim report, annual report, announcements,
environmental, social and governance report and circulars;

e  considering dividend policy and advising on/determining
the declaration of final/interim dividends;

e ensuring the Company has good corporate governance
and reviewing and monitoring its policies and practices
on compliance with applicable legal and regulatory
requirements; and

e approving and monitoring other significant financial and

operational matters.
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Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated to the
management under the leadership of the Executive Directors.

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to
the date of approval of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Hang Wing James (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 1 April 2024)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel (Resigned on 1 April 2025)

Non-executive Director
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (Resigned on 1 April 2024)

INEDs

Prof. KO Jan Ming

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 25 to 33 of this annual
report. A list of Directors and their role and function is also
available on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange. None of the directors have appointed any alternate.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business and has established
mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available
to the Board. All Directors have separate and independent access
to the advice and services of the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company, with a view to ensuring that
board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities and have exercised their duties of care, skill and
diligence. When particular areas of expertise or advice are required,
independent professional advice shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses.
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The Company has arranged insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors and its officers. The insurance
coverage is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and

officers are adequately protected against potential liabilities.

The INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three INEDs, with at least one
INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has also met the requirement of maintaining at least
one-third of members of the Board being INEDs as required by
Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The five INEDs of the Company are persons of high caliber,
with professional qualifications and experience in the fields of
engineering, education, dental and accounting and finance.
With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board and manage to make positive
contribution to the development of the Group’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.

All INEDs are appointed for a fixed specific term of two years.
Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received from each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man

Piu Albert, Dr. LI Yok Sheung, Ms. MAK Suk Hing and Mr.
MONG Chan’s annual confirmations of independence.

In view of each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu
Albert and Mr. MONG Chan’s previous position as either an
INED or a Non-executive Director of Vantage International
(Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”, a company incorporated in
Bermuda and which shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange (stock code: 15) from 8 September 2000
to 22 October 2020, ceased to be the intermediate holding
company of the Company on 19 November 2020) within two
years immediately prior to the date of his appointment on 1
February 2021, and Prof. KO Jan Ming had served the position
in Vantage for more than nine years, Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr.
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LEE Man Piu Albert and Mr. MONG Chan may be considered
unable to meet certain independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules or in the CG Code. The Board
considers that Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert
and Mr. MONG Chan are independent, for the reasons, among

others, set out below:

(i) each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert
and Mr. MONG Chan was not involved in the daily
management and operations of Vantage nor had he
developed any business connections with Vantage and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Vantage Group”)
(including the Group) during his tenure;

(ii) the roles and duties of Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert as a non-
executive director of Vantage were similar to that of
other INEDs of Vantage and Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert was
not involved in the daily management and operations of
Vantage nor had he developed any business connections
with the Vantage Group during his tenure;

(iii) each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert and
Mr. MONG Chan was independent of the Vantage Group,

including the Group, during his tenure;

(iv) each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert and
Mr. MONG Chan was not entitled to any discretionary
performance-based bonus during his tenure; and

(v) each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert and
Mr. MONG Chan has confirmed that he is independent
to act as an INED of the Company and met all other
independence guidelines for INED.

The Company has individually assessed his/her independence
and considers all INEDs to be independent based on the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, their non-involvement in the daily operation and
management of the Group and the absence of any relationships
which will interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment.

The Company confirms that the number of year of service of all
INEDs as a Director is less than 9 years.
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Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular
Board meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end
of each calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan
for attendance of the meetings. Meetings will also be convened,

as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues.

Any Director who is unable to present physically may
participate at any Board meeting through electronic means
of communication, such as conference telephone, video
communications platform or other similar communication
facilities, in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles”).

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the
Board to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director
may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied
by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information,
are sent to each Director not less than 7 days before the date
of a Board meeting. This enable Directors to make informed
decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any
urgent ad hoc matter. All Directors are entitled to have access
to Board papers and related materials and make enquiries when

they require further information.

Minutes of Board meetings are recorded in sufficient details
regarding the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached at the meetings. Draft minutes of Board meetings
are circulated to the Directors for comments and the signed
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and open for

inspection to any Director on request.
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Each of the Directors rendered sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company and the attendance record of each of
the Directors at the meetings of the Board and meetings of the
Board’s committees (the “Board Committee(s)”, comprising
the Company’s Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration

Committee”), the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination

W

Committee”) and the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out

below:

Directors

#H

Executive Directors

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai

Mr. LEE Hang Wing James

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel
(resigned on | April 2025)

Non-executive Director
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung
(resigned on 1 April 2024)

INEDs

Prof. KO Jan Ming

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. MAK Suk Hing
Mr. MONG Chan

# Meeting was held on 29 November 2024

## Established to advise the independent shareholders on continuing — ##
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Appointment, Re-election, Removal and Retirement of
Directors

The Board is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession of Directors and assessing the
independence of INEDs. The appointment of INEDs adheres
to the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, through the Nomination
Committee set up in January 2017, reviews from time to time
its own structure, size, composition and diversity to ensure that
it has a balance of appropriate expertise, skills, experience and

diversity for the needs of the businesses of the Group.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) since January 2017 which set out the
approach to achieve diversity of Board members. Since April
2019, the Board has also adopted a director nomination
policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) which set out the
approach and procedures the Board adopts for the nomination
and selection of Directors. A summary of each of the policies is
set out in the subsection “Nomination Committee” under the

section “BOARD COMMITTEES” in this report.

The term of office of each of the Directors has been fixed for a
specific term for not more than three years. The Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once

every three years at AGM in accordance with the Articles.
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In accordance with clause 108 of the Articles, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
A retired Director shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at each AGM provided that each Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The election of each candidate is done through a separate
resolution. Any new Director appointed during the year as an
addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
shall hold office only until the next coming general meeting of
the Company and shall then be subject to re-election at that

meeting.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of the
CG Code on the independence consideration of all INEDs.
The Board’s view on their independent status was set out in
the sections headed “The INEDs” of this corporate governance
report.

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at each annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Hang Wing
James, Prof. KO Jan Ming and Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert will
retire from office and all of them, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2025 AGM to be
held on 28 August 2025, Thursday. Details with respect to the
candidates standing for re-election as Directors are set out in
the AGM circular to Shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company establishes a clear and well-defined division of
responsibilities between the Chairman, who is responsible for
the management the Board, and the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”), who is responsible for the day-to-day management of

the Company’s business.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and that the Directors receive
adequate information which are accurate, clear complete
and reliable information in a timely manner. The Chairman/
chairman of the meeting has an additional or casting vote in

the event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided by
the Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to

monitor the performance of the management.

According to the code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Chairman met with the INEDs of the Company for once
without the presence of the management and other Directors
during the year. Such meeting provided an effective forum for
the Chairman to listen to the views of the INEDs on issues
including corporate governance improvement, effectiveness
of the Board, and such other issues they may wish to raise in
the absence of other Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs.

The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established on 18 January 2017 with
specific written terms of reference stipulating its authorities and

duties, which are available on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee comprised of five
INEDs, namely Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert,
Dr. LI Yok Sheung, Ms. MAK Suk Hing and Mr. MONG
Chan. Mr. MONG Chan is the chairman of Audit Committee
and possesses the appropriate accounting qualifications and

experiences in financial matters.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s report,
and to monitor the integrity of the consolidated financial
statements. It also assists the Board to oversee risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. The Audit Committee has
access to independent professional advice at the Company’s

expense, through the Company Secretary, where necessary.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at least twice a
year and the Company’s external auditor was invited to attend
the meetings at least twice a year to discuss the audit plan and
to review the Company’s reports and accounts. During the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee held four meetings
(two meetings were with the presence of external auditor) and
the primarily works performed by the Audit Committee were,
among others:

e reviewed the unaudited accounts, interim report and
interim results announcement of the Company;

e reviewed the audited accounts and final results
announcement of the Company;

e reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Company and the Group;
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e reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor;

e approved the scope and plan of internal and external audit;

e reviewed the engagement, services (including non-audit
services proposed to be provided by the external auditor or
its associates) provided and remuneration of the external
auditor and its independence;

e reviewed the results and effectiveness of the internal and
external audit functions;

e reviewed and monitored the adequacy and effectiveness
of the financial reporting function, the risk management
system, the internal control system and the internal audit
function of the Group;

e reviewed connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions;

e reviewed the “Policy for Non-audit Services provided
by the Group’s External Auditor and its Associates” and
monitored the policy’s implementation; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

It was confirmed that there was no disagreement between the
Board’s and the Audit Committee’s view on re-appointment
of the external auditor, and they both recommended the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external

auditor for the ensuing year at the 2025 AGM.

Draft minutes of Audit Committee meetings are circulated to
members of Audit Committee for comments and review and the
signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and shared

with the members of Audit Committee for reference.

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 January
2017 with specific written terms of reference stipulating its
authorities and duties, which are available on the websites
of the Company and The Stock Exchange, and consists
of a majority of INEDs. The purpose of the Remuneration
Committee is to set policy on Executive Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and for fixing remuneration

packages for all Directors and senior management.
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As at 31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee comprised
of the five INEDs, namely Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man
Piu Albert, Dr. LI Yok Sheung, Ms. MAK Suk Hing and Mr.
MONG Chan; and one Executive Director, namely Mr. YAU
Kwok Fai. Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structuring for Directors and senior management
and their remuneration package with reference to the Group’s
corporate goals and strategies. The Remuneration Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
The Remuneration Committee has access to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, through the

Company Secretary, where necessary.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings and the major works performed

by the Remuneration Committee were, among others:

e approved the contract/letter of appointments entered into
between the Company and individual Director(s);

e reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for remuneration of the Directors and
senior management;

e assessed performance of Executive Director(s),
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration package, including discretionary
performance-based bonus, of individual Director and the
senior management; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee.

REFZHFEZA=Z+—H > HiWZE G
B IR AT E S (BB B - o0 - &
BRI - 2 L RSB s U R— A
73 (B30 R 58 2 ) AL o 2S00 B A T S
ZHEER -

HH 2 5 0 S B B 2 AR SR Y 3 H
BERISR NG - 1 SR A B R AR L
V1 37 T SR SR A5 > NP T 5 A S R R o
Mz B AR EREATI - HiMEE g
TR A A UL A A R O R
> B BEARAF A

BME B G EERITRYS - RE®E -  RBE_R
ZHAEZAZT—HIEEEN > HWEE 8247
TE=REgwk > FMEZB BT EET/HERP R
15 .

o AL W BRI HE F TSI AR RAE
B 3

o BB 9 R i A B R P N R X A
G e

o FEANBUTE S RYEBL - TR OB B E g

o AR B B 4 (L 356 B A B A B A 7Y
ABAL) [ 3 4R b - %

o hEEHHMZ B AR R o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Executive Directors and senior management of the
Group may be entitled to have discretionary performance
related bonus payments which are determined by the Board
with reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration
Committee, after accounting for the Group’s operating results
and assessing respective performance of the individuals.
No Director was involved in the determination about his
associate’s or his own remuneration. Particulars of the
remuneration payable to each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note 9 to the financial

statements of this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the

remuneration of the senior management (excluding the
Directors) as at 31 March 2025 by band for the year ended 31
March 2025 was set out below:
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The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 January
2017 with specific written terms of reference stipulating its
authorities and duties, which are available on the websites
of the Company and The Stock Exchange, and consists of a
majority of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee was made
up of the five INEDs, namely Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man
Piu Albert, Dr. LI Yok Sheung, Ms. MAK Suk Hing and Mr.
MONG Chan; and one Executive Director, namely Mr. YAU
Kwok Fai who is also the chairman of Nomination Committee.
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The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; identifying individuals suitably and
qualified to become Directors; and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties. The Nomination
Committee has access to independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, through the Company Secretary, where

necessary.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings. The major works performed by the

Nomination Committee were, among others:

e reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and made recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and putting forward nominations or
recommendations to the Board for proposed appointments
to the Board;

e assessed the independence of individual INEDs;

e reviewed time commitment of individual Directors for
performance of his/her responsibilities;

e reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

e reviewed the “Director Nomination Policy” and
“Board Diversity Policy” and monitored the policies’
implementation; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee.
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Director Nomination Policy

The “Director Nomination Policy” sets out the approach
and procedures adopted for the nomination and selection of
directors, including the appointment of additional Directors,
replacement of Directors, and re-election of Directors to
ensure that proper approach and procedures of the selection
and nomination of Directors are in place. The “Director
Nomination Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee, as appropriate and at least annually, to ensure its

effectiveness.
The “Director Nomination Policy” are summarised below:

Selection Criteria

When the need to select, nominate or re-elect Directors arises,
the Nomination Committee shall, as it considers appropriate,
consider a variety of factors in making nominations, including
but not limited to the following in assessing the suitability of

the proposed candidate:

e reputation for integrity;

e the skills, knowledge, experience and professional
expertise which are relevant to the operations of the
Group;

e commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and
attention and participate in induction on appointment,
continuous professional development and other Board
associated activities;

e ability to exercise sound business judgement and possess
experience in senior management;

e contribute to the Board’s diversity with due regard to
the diversity perspectives set out in the “Board Diversity
Policy” of the Company; and

e compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the consideration
of appointment of an INED.
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Procedures and Process

e for appointment of new and replacement Directors, the
Nomination Committee assesses the potential candidates
based on the selection criteria and make recommendation
to the Board. The Board has the authority on determining
suitable director candidate for appointment; and

e for re-election of Directors and nomination from
shareholders, the Nomination Committee make
recommendation to the Board/Shareholder such retiring

Director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board
will include and make good use of differences in a number of
factors, including but without limitation, gender, age, cultural,
skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the Board. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition
of the Board. All appointments of Directors will be based on
merit and the Nomination Committee will review the Board
composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity. The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee, as appropriate and at least annually,

to ensure its effectiveness.

There is currently one female Director out of seven Directors,
representing approximately 14% of the Board. However, the
Board believes that gender should not be the sole factor in
considering a candidate to the Board. The Company would
take into account various factors to identify suitable candidates
for appointment to the Board in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy and the Director Nomination Policy and may
adjust the proportion of female directors over time as and
when it is appropriate. The gender diversity of the Group’s
workforce (including senior management) as at 31 March
2025 was approximately 76.8% male and 23.2% female. The
predominant image of construction, being the core business
of the Group, is that of a male-dominated industry requiring
physical strength and good tolerance for outdoor conditions.
Accordingly, it is unpractical for the Group to set any specific
target of gender diversity for its workforce. However, the
Group is committed to providing equal opportunities to
suitable candidates and staff for employment, learning and job

advancement regardless of gender.
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An analysis of the Board’s composition, as classified into
different aspects, up to the date of this annual report is set out
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of his/her responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities
and development of the Group. The Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Group’s
development.

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction upon their first appointment to
ensure proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company, as well as full awareness of their responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.
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According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company continues its effort in providing
updates on the changes in the relevant regulatory requirements
applicable to the Group from time to time and recommending
relevant seminars (including webinars)/conferences/forums
to the Directors as and when appropriate. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous improvement

programmes at the expense of the Company.

Directors recognise the need for continuous professional
development and confirmed that they had complied with the
code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during the year. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with the records
of the training they received annually. According to the records
maintained by the Company, all Directors pursued continuous
professional development during the year ended 31 March 2025

and relevant details are set out below:

Directors HY

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai e IR M 2
Mr. LEE Hang Wing James &SR
Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel B 5 et
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung LIRS

(resigned on 1 April 2024) (R=FZMENT—H
AFIE)

Prof. KO Jan Ming 4R €
Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert R A
Dr. LI Yok Sheung 20 T
Ms. MAK Suk Hing E2 Uk
Mr. MONG Chan FBAH:

Notes:

A — Participated in seminar (included webinars)/conferences/forums regarding
financial, accounting, taxation, construction and/or environmental, social and
governance

B - Read journals/updates/articles regarding updates on rules and regulations,
relating to listed companies, corporate governance, construction, internal
control, financial, accounting and/or taxation
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DIVIDEND POLICY

To enhance transparency of the Company in the
recommendation and declaration of dividend, the Board has
adopted a written “Dividend Policy” (the “Dividend Policy”)

which sets out the factors of determining the recommendation

and declaration of dividend since 18 March 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may consider declaring
and paying dividends to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
distributable reserves. Such declaration and payment of
dividends shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board, subject to the requirements of all applicable
laws and the Articles (including Shareholders’ approval of the
payment of final dividend in AGM).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall strike
a balance between providing immediate return to the
Shareholders through the payment of dividends whilst
retaining adequate reserves as the Group’s working capital and
for the Group’s future growth. In deciding whether to propose
or declare a dividend and in determining the dividend amount
and means of payment, the Board shall take into account,

among others:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e the capital and debt level of the Group;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and major subsidiaries of the Group; and

e the working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future development plans of the Group.

The Board will from time to time review the Dividend Policy
and may update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at

any time as the Board deems fit and necessary.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the code of

conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions.

Following specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2025. Full details of the Directors’ interests in the
shares of the Company are set out on pages 62 to 82 in the
“REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS?” of this annual report.

The Company has also established written code on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for dealings in the
securities of the Company by relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in

relation to the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company sent
notifications to the Directors and employees regarding the
“black-out period(s)” as specified in the relevant codes and the
relevant period when the Directors and relevant employees
were not allowed to deal in the securities of the Company. All
Directors and employees are also bound by corporate policies
of the Company to refrain from dealing in the Company’s
securities if they are in possession of any inside information of
the Group.
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AUDITOR’ S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the
AGM held on 29 August 2024 as the Company’s external
auditor until the conclusion of the 2025 AGM.

During the year, the Company also awarded non-audit services
works to Ernst & Young and its associates. Through the
Audit Committee, the Board monitors the non-audit services
rendered by its external auditor and its associates to the Group
to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the external

auditor would not be impaired.

Pursuant to the “Policy for Non-audit Services provided by the
Group’s External Auditor and its Associates”, all proposed non-
audit services of the external auditor or its associates would
be reviewed by the Audit Committee before the respective
engagement. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the
Audit Committee reviewed the nature of non-audit services
proposed to be performed by Ernst & Young or its associates
and considered these non-audit services would not give rise to
impairment of actual or perceived independence, or objectivity
of the audit work itself. The Audit Committee recommended
the Board to propose the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
as the independent external auditor of the Company for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2025, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst &

Young, and its associates is set out below:

Audit services Hwl R
Non-audit services: I FH R -

i 5 Ml 5

Taxation services
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2,788
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is to support the Board by ensuring
good information flow with the Board as well as the Board’s
policy and procedures being followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates induction and the professional development of

the Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board
and the CEO. The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company. The appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary is subject to the Board’s approval. The Company
Secretary has confirmed that she has complied with all the
required qualifications and training requirements under the

Listing Rules as at 31 March 2025.

Ms. LAM Chun Chu has been appointed to succeed Mr.
CHONG Yuk Fai as the Company Secretary with effect from 1
July 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective systems of risk management and
internal control to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the

Group’s business objectives.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, covering all the departments
and business units, to monitor, assess and manage various risks,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, in

the Group’s business activities.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of REEZR-AFE=ZA=Z+—HILFEREEH
approval of this annual report, the Group adopts the following — #EARERE H > ARLEEIRALLT [ 1Y B B

four lines of defense approach on risk management: ARAE B B
1* Line of Defense 2" Line of Defense 37 Line of Defense 4 Line of Defense
S B4 BB YL 5850 38 i
Focus Culture, Ethics and General ~ Business Operations Oversight Functions Audit and Whistle-blowing
iy Behaviour HEET BBk e Ful R
AL ~ WA R AT By
Owner All employees (including Supervisors and management  Senior management, the Board The Board, the Audit
FHAL Directors) TR and the Audit Committee Committee, internal and
P B T(5EEH) R - EHE R external auditors and external
ENREW professionals
HHE - BUEHE - WA
L ESNTYYEE E INR
Major Measures ¢ Conduct and behaviour e Standardise procedures and ¢ Financial control ¢ Internal audit
FER requirements practices B g
i R AT R BLAE U R R A ¢ Risk management ¢ External audit
® Training and promotion o [nternal control measures Ja o B AN
el A LR RS ¢ Compliance review o Whistle-blowing mechanism
¢ Management control BREE S
FRpEH o External enquiry/investigation
¢ Training shRAER /A
i

Regarding the handling and dissemination of inside #HUEPLREEMNEN L » AAF CREER(AHE
information, the Company has taken appropriate measures 15 8 ¥ &8 BUR ) ERBUE B 55 5k 31 P9 45 1 8 36 AR 45
according to a written “Corporate Information Disclosure — HB% M > F 538 18 b I 22 B 45 BLAY 78 7 38845 &
Policy” to identify inside information and preserve its %% ZEH o A RHEBECK CHFIR—HH R T
confidentiality until proper dissemination via the electronic ~ F}) » ZFMIREAAREIMA A E T o Mt
publication system operated by The Stock Exchange. This AERHKEEIG > Frf B T8 50 &% W5 BRI
policy has been set out in a written “Employee Handbook”, W A3 HAE AR BRIV A BLESIE - DA B I
which is made available to all employees of the Group, so that ARAR K NFEHE o B TARARBERE LN 17
not only the senior management but all employees are aware — BUAEFR M /52 ) A &4 B P9 2 1 6L WAL 4] Y8 A
of this disclosure policy and their responsibilities to take all ik > ij Ho A% 3r B 48 %0 2 25 8 DLV 2R BF B0 & 47
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to  Hj o

prevent the leakage of inside information of the Company from

time to time. Employees must also promptly bring any possible

leakage or divulgence of inside information to the attention of

the Chairman, the CEO and/or the Company Secretary, who

will notify the Board immediately accordingly for taking the

appropriate action promptly.
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of probity, openness, and accountability. A
whistle-blowing policy is in place for the Group’s employees
and associates of the Group’s businesses to raise concerns and
to report when anyone of them believes reasonably and in good
faith that he/she has come across fraud, malpractices, violation
of business ethics or improprieties. The policy are available on
the website of the Company.

The Group’s internal auditor conducted systematic reviews
of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended 31
March 2025 by adopting a risk-based approach and review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system according
to an internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee.
The CEO and any members of the Audit Committee may
instruct the internal auditor to undertake internal audit
activities of an urgent or sensitive nature. The internal auditor
reports directly to the Audit Committee and has the power
to access and review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and systems. Internal audit findings and control weaknesses
identified and follow-up plans/actions taken have been
summarised and reported to the Audit Committee at least
annually. Other Directors are also informed of the findings and

weaknesses identified.

The Audit Committee, assisted by the management and the
internal auditor, had reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Audit Committee
considered the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group were effective and adequate. The Board also
reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through discussion with the Audit Committee on audit

findings and internal control matters.

Both the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
of the reporting year were effective and adequate for their

purposes.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company is endeavouring to maintain a high level
of transparency in communication with Shareholders
and investors in general. The Company has adopted a
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy” on 18 January
2017, which is available on the website of the Company,
reflecting mostly the current practices of the Company for
communication with its Shareholders. The various channels
via which the Company communicates with Shareholders
include interim and annual reports, information on The Stock

Exchange’s and the Company’s websites, and general meetings.

The Company’s AGM provides an opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate face to face with the Directors
about the Group’s performance and operations. The Chairman
of the Board, the Executive Directors, Non-executive Director,
the INEDs, the chairman of each of the Board Committees and
external auditor of the Company will attend AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. Separate resolutions will be proposed
at the general meetings on each substantially separate issue,

including the re-election of individual Directors.

The Company’s 2024 AGM was held on 29 August 2024.
The notice of the 2024 AGM, the 2023/24 annual report and
the circular containing relevant information of the proposed
resolutions of the 2024 AGM were sent to the Shareholders
more than 20 clear business days before the 2024 AGM. All
Directors and the external auditor attended the 2024 AGM and
were available to answer questions. The Company Secretary
explained the poll voting procedures at the 2024 AGM.
Separate resolutions for each substantially separate issue,
including the re-election of individual Directors, were proposed
at the 2024 AGM. All the resolutions at the 2024 AGM
were dealt with by poll. The poll results of the 2024 AGM
are available on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting

In accordance with the Articles, any Shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings shall have
the right, by written requisition served to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the

requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner.

The requisition (i) must state the purpose of the extraordinary
general meeting; and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
at No.155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the
Company. The requisition will then be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will
forward the requisition to the Board and inform the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by serving sufficient
notice to all shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Laws or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.
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Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for proposing candidate(s) for election as
director(s) at a general meeting are set out in the “Corporate
Governance” under section headed “Investor Relations” on the
website of the Group.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board at
general meetings or send their enquiries, concerns and notice
with sufficient details to the principal place of business of the
Company at No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company and the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

The external auditor of the Company acknowledged their
reporting responsibilities in its auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
83 to 92 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board of
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

YAU Kwok Fai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025

EEF R

A AL ES
PBRAE ERAAN L2 HERIRBOEF -
TA A 0 Al v TBERE 5 BRAR ] — 8 F T34
Iag o

I 3 = 7 i T i B

R A RER B R & B > St A
A~ BB A 0 A A A A A ] AR A W L
HEJURE R BT 8 3E 1555 M R 2 SRR - HR DG
WEF G -

A7 B S B R Y A R

ERMBRTHREERREE—F G =A
= B RSB BB R 2 AT > A B B R
U B A R AR A ) e AR I 4 A A
He e [ B AR DL

U S TR > RS ) A Y BT PR R R T
B B A R RS B BRI BE )

A T B AN AL A AR AR 83 H RSO H I
B LA B HRRE SR RAES
H = F kA B2 PR A i S 25 R A R AT -

RE#EHT
KR TREBEARA

3
e 11

B “FAHENASEAH

61



62

Annual Report 2024-2025 £ 3§

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AR

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are pleased to present
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the Group’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) during the year, an analysis of the
Group’s financial performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s
future business development and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing by the Group are provided in
the “FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY?” section of this
annual report on pages 4 to 6 and the “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” section of this annual report
on pages 14 to 24. Also, the Group’s financial risk management
objectives and policies are set out in note 39 to the financial

statements.

The Group is committed to be an environmental-responsible
corporation with the aim to conserve the environment
while making reasonable returns. The Group has operated
an environmental management system which complies with
international standards and will continuously encourage our
business partners, suppliers and sub-contractors to follow
the same standards. Further information of the Group’s
policies and performance during the year ended 31 March
2025 from the environmental perspective was included in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company which will be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that have significant impact on the

business and operations of the Group.

All references herein to other sections of this annual report or

reports form part of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 95 of this

annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK6.0 cents (2024: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 March 2025 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of shareholders of the Company
on 5 September 2025, Friday. The proposed payment of the
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders (“Shareholder(s)”) at the forthcoming 2025
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2025.

Based on the 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
issues as of the date of approval of this annual report, the total
dividend amounted to HK$120,000,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is
set out on pages 4 to 6 of this annual report. This summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements but part of
“BUSINESS REVIEW”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

The 2025 AGM of the Company will be held in Hong Kong on
28 August 2025, Thursday. Notice of the AGM will be issued
and disseminated to the shareholders in due course.
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To determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2025 AGM, the register of shareholders of the Company
will be closed from 25 August 2025, Monday, to 28 August
2025, Thursday, (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 22
August 2025, Friday.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Assuming that the final dividend recommended by the Board is
approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, for the
purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from
3 September 2025, Wednesday to 5 September 2025, Friday
(both days inclusive). During the closure period, no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2
September 2025, Tuesday. It is expected that the final dividend
will be payable to those entitled shareholders on or before 26
September 2025, Friday.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Under the Group’s internal control and risk management
framework, the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with
the responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Other than the significant
accounting judgements and estimates and the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group set out in
note 39 to the financial statements, the Group is also exposed

to other key risks factors and uncertainties, among others:
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Business and Market Risk

Demand for services and products of the Group is cyclical
in nature and directly correlates with the level of real estate
development, construction activities, liquidity demands and
general economic environment in Hong Kong. The Group
relies heavily on public sector projects which by their nature
are only awarded by a limited number of customers who are
normally the HKSAR Government and/or various institutional
bodies. There is no guarantee that our customers will provide
the Group with new business or that we will secure new

customers.

The Group’s business and profitability may be materially
and adversely affected by failure to tender for new contract
works, any material reduction in spending by the HKSAR
Government or various institutional bodies on public sector
works and/or delay in awarding contracts of such works.
The Group has accumulated over 45 years’ experience in
construction industry, we will continue to keep a close eye on
project safety, project quality and project efficiency to ensure

we remain competitive in tendering new projects.

Construction risk

The Group is exposed to construction risk in relation to price
fluctuation, duration of works, quality of work, environmental
protection and safety requirements involved in the
construction business. The Group tries to manage and mitigate
these risks through risk transfer, improve communication
between project teams and project estimation and procurement

departments, implementation of management systems.

Compliance Risk

The Group is exposed to compliance risk in relation to various
rules and regulations, including but not limited to rules and
regulations in relation to construction, labour, occupational
health and safety, environmental protection, contractor
registration and listing in Hong Kong. Non-compliance may
causes serious legal sanctions, material financial loss, or loss
to reputation and loss of business to the Group. The Group
paid high attention to the enactment and amendment of laws
and regulations which may cause legal or business risks to the
Group’s business and will arrange appropriate training and

experience sharing activities for relevant employees.
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Risk on Reliance of Key Management Personnel

The Group’s success and growth depends on our ability to
identify, hire, train and retain suitable, skilled and qualified
employees, including management personnel with the requisite
industry expertise. The Directors and members of senior
management, in particular, the Executive Directors, are
important to the Group. If any of the Executive Directors cease
to be involved in the management of the Group and the Group
is unable to find suitable replacements in a timely manner,
there could be an adverse impact on our business, results of
operation and profitability of the Group. The Group manages
this risk by (i) providing competitive remuneration packages
and benefits which including discretionary performance-
related bonus, incentive travels and subsidies for education and
training programmes; and (ii) acquired life insurance policies
for one Executive director and one senior management.

Business Partners Risk

The Group relies on third-party sub-contractors and service
providers in certain parts of its business. The management
realises that such operational dependency may pose a threat of
vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including
reputation damage, business disruption and monetary losses.
In addition, some of the Group’s businesses are conducted
through joint ventures/joint operations in which the Group
shares control and risks with other business partners. The
relevant risks include that these business partners may not
continue their relationships with the Group, do not work for
the Group’s interest, take actions against the Group’s interest,
undergo a change of control or not fulfil their obligations
under the joint ventures/joint operations and associates. To
address such uncertainties, the Group only engages/cooperates
with reputable and experienced business partners and closely
monitors their performance.

Cyber and Information Security Risk

Frequency of cyber-attacks like sophisticated phishing
campaigns and ransomware continued increased in recent years.
The potential threat of a cyber-attack is increasing. Cyber-
attacks may lead to loss of information, leakage of confidential
information, unavailability of systems and disruption of
operation that significant costs may be required for data
recovery and system restoration, and/or possible claims. The
Group manages this risk by implement security measures such
as firewall, anti-spam and anti-virus protection, and increase
internal communication of cyber and information security
threats to raise staff awareness.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2025 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share
capital, issued share capital and share options during this year.
Details of the Company’s issued share capital and share options

are set out in note 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) or laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer

new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2025.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$677,980,000 (31
March 2024: HK$676,288,000).

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations for charitable
purposes of HK$132,000 (2024: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining good
relationships with customers, suppliers and sub-contractors
to achieve its long-term business growth and development.
Accordingly, the Group has kept good communications
and shared business updates with business partners when
appropriate.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, revenue earned from the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
100% (2024: 98%) of the total revenue and revenue earned
from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 55% (2024: 51%). Three (2024: Three) out of
the five largest customers are from the public sector. The Group
has not entered into any long-term framework agreements with
any of these major customers. WHSE was among the five largest
customers of the Group and the revenue earned attributable to

the Group was 2% (2024: 1%).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the respective
percentage of the subcontracting charges and materials
costs incurred attributable to the Group’s largest suppliers/
subcontractors and five largest suppliers/subcontractors in
aggregate was 17% (2024: 13%) and 37% (2024: 39%).
Lanon Development was among the five largest suppliers/
subcontractors of the Group and the total subcontracting

charges and material costs incurred attributable to the Group

was 4% (2024: 6%).

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of
their close associates or any Shareholders (which to the
best knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had a material interest in our

five largest suppliers/subcontractors.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to

the date of approval of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Hang Wing James (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 1 April 2024)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel
(Resigned on 1 April 2025)

Non-executive Director
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung
(Resigned on 1 April 2024)

INEDs

Prof. KO Jan Ming

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at each annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Hang Wing
James, Prof. KO Jan Ming and Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert will
retire from office and all of them, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2025 AGM to be
held on 28 August 2025, Thursday.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs
Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received from each of Prof. KO Jan Ming, Dr. LEE Man
Piu Albert, Dr. LI Yok Sheung, Ms. MAK Suk Hing and
Mr. MONG Chan’s annual confirmation of independence.

The Board considers all of the INEDs are independent in
accordance with related Listing Rules. The independence

consideration of all of the INEDs has been set out in the section

headed “The INEDs” on pages 37 to 38 of this annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung has confirmed to the Company of his/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as
defined in the Prospectus of the Company dated 26 January
2017). The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and
confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied with by Mr. NGAI Chun
Hung during the year ended 31 March 2025.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 33 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of continuing connected transactions; and significant
related party transactions are disclosed in this report and in
note 36 to the financial statements.

Save for the above, no Director nor a connected entity of a
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Group’s business to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for contract of service with the Executive Directors, no
contract by which a person undertakes the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company’s business was entered into or subsisted during the
year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director and officer shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur in or sustain by
the execution of his/her duty or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has maintained appropriate insurance cover for
the Directors and officers in connection with the discharge of

their responsibilities throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 March 2025, Mr. NGAI Chun Hung’s son, Mr. NGAI
Wing Yin, aged over 18, is a director of Lanon Development
Limited (“Lanon Development”), Lanon Construction Limited
(“Lanon Construction”), Lanon Construction (HK) Limited
(“Lanon Construction (HK)”), Lanon Building Limited
(“Lanon Building”), Lanon Architectural Limited (“Lanon
Architectural”) and Lanon Engineering Limited (“Lanon
Engineering”), all incorporated in Hong Kong and engaging in

construction, maintenance and engineering contract works.

Meanwhile, Ms. WONG Chui Yee, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin’s wife
and Mr. NGAI Chun Hung’s daughter-in-law, aged over 18, is
also a director of Lanon Development. As at 31 March 2025,
Mr. NGAI Wing Yin holds 100% beneficial interest in Lanon
Development, Lanon Construction, Lanon Construction (HK),

Lanon Building, Lanon Architectural and Lanon Engineering.

The Board is responsible for all material decisions of the
Group and has established policies to ensure independence
in its dealings. Any potential conflicts of interest involving
the controlling shareholder or his associates are managed in
accordance with the Company’s governance framework and
applicable regulatory requirements. Therefore, the Board is
capable of carrying on the Group’s business independent of, and

at arm’s length, from the business of the aforesaid companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
Directors or the controlling shareholder or their respective
close associates is interested in any business which competes
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

WA

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2025, details of the interests and short positions
of each of the Director and chief executive of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
as required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under provisions of the SFO); or required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO; or otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares:

Capacity and

Director nature of interests

H X4y B Ml 4 1k

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (note (i))

Interest in a controlled corporation

B MESS A (M ik (i) ¥ ] s R i
Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel (note (iii)) Personal

B SEAE (M k(i) (PN

Prof. KO Jan Ming Personal

[ LR €53 (N

o Bdn m AT BN B 2 R A

REFZHFE=ZA=Z4H > KAARIKER R
FATBON B A A R W By ~ AH BB e £ 27 o
B HLBR R S B e ([l 2 B 90 A e ol 1) o8
XV RS TR 55 8 43 ¥ ZE 1 1 AR 24 W) B Mgk 32 ot B AT o
25 R A (AL AL 2 I 1 B R B A Sk
AR SR AT PR R ) ¢ SRR 2
IR 5053 5 200 B e AL SRR AR A R T AR LI
A Py A A B i S AT 5 SO b i A B
FRC3 PR R 84T N B AT R & S B
Ay ) (1B oS B ) i 28 200 87 A 2 ] 5 0 22 e
AL PR R ¢

I A A
% of issued
Number of share capital of
Shares interested the Company
PEATHE A W fliA A\l AT
BBy ¥ H JBe AR B T 43 b
(note(ii))
(Mfit (i)
1,500,000,000 75.000
300,000 0.015
28,000 0.001
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Notes:

(i)  These Shares are legally and beneficially owned by Golden Lux Holdings
Limited (“Golden Lux”, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability and the entire issued share capital
of which is wholly-owned by Golden More Limited (“Golden More”),
a company incorporated in the BVI and the entire issued share capital
of which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. NGAI Chun Hung).
Accordingly, Mr. NGAI Chun Hung is interested in the 1,500,000,000
shares held by Golden Lux, under the SFO.

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung resigned as an Non-executive Director on 1 April
2024.

(ii) The percentages showing in the table are approximates.

(iii) Mr. LAU Chi Fai resigned as an Executive Director on 1 April 2025.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company and its associated
corporations had no outstanding share options granted to the
Directors to subscribe for the securities of the Company and its

associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

WA

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” above,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2025 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouses, or children to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 31 August 2018 (the “Scheme”) are set out in

note 30 to the financial statements.

From the date of the adoption of the Scheme up to the date of
approval of this annual report, the Company did not grant any

share options under the Scheme.

Save as the Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group during this year or subsisted at the end of this

year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2025, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the following
persons and companies (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the Shares and the underlying shares of the Company which

fell to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of the
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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F BB AU i 2 1 B 2

REFZHEZAZ4—H > REEE R IR
] 57 33 6 0 A2 e 8 I A 4 W) 2 T A L R R i
> UFALRAF (RAFESERRRHITBAR
BRAI) I AR 23 T I B R e Aoy v A AR 4 0 I
FI BRI S XV IR 58 2 B 553 43 F8 i 0 SO I AR A )
e PR AR BRI

BB W 5 AT

% of issued

Number of share capital
Name of Shareholders Notes Capacity and nature of interests Shares held of the Company
Fide T AiARAF BT
B EE S Bttty BoHE 2 PR e By ¥ H JBe A i 4y e
Golden Lux (i) Beneficially owned 1,500,000,000 75.00
&0 JEE %7 XN
Golden More (i) Interested in a controlled corporation 1,500,000,000 75.00
Ky Yol s R i
Ms. CHENG Wai Chun (ii) Interested in a controlled corporation and 1,500,000,000 75.00

(“Ms. CHENG”)
WEZL L (kL)

interest of spouse

52 152 ] 2 T REE 2 e 9% R 2

Notes:

(i)  Golden Lux is wholly-owned by Golden More. As such, Golden More is
deemed to be interested in the 1,500,000,000 Shares owned by Golden
Lux under the SFO.

(ii) Ms. CHENG is the spouse of Mr. NGAI Chun Hung. Ms. CHENG is
deemed to be interested in the 1,500,000,000 Shares held by Golden Lux
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no other
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares and
the underlying shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFQO, or who, as at 31 March 2025, was directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

WA

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Framework Agreements with Lanon Development

Set out below are the transactions entered into by the Group
which constitutes continuing connected transactions of the
Company (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) and
are required to be disclosed herein under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 18 February 2022, the Company (for and on behalf of
itself and any of its subsidiaries) also entered the Framework
Agreements with Lanon Development, pursuant to which
members of the Group and Lanon Development could engage
the counterparty for the provision of contracting services
according to the terms and conditions as specified in the

respective agreements from time to time up to 31 March 2025.

Each of the Framework Agreements constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the
largest proposed annual caps under each of the Framework
Subcontracting Agreement are more than 5% and more than
HK$10 million, the entering into of each of the Framework
Subcontracting Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and Independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Framework Agreements and the respective transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by the independent
Shareholders by way of poll on 9 June 2022. For further
details of the Framework Agreements, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 18 February 2022, 20
May 2022 and 9 June 2022, and the circular of the Company
dated 24 May 2022.
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The maximum amount of subcontracting fees payable by
Lanon Development to the Group under the Framework
Subcontracting Agreement for the years ending 31 March
2023, 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 shall not exceed the
caps of HK$280 million, HK$600 million and HK$690 million,

respectively.

The total subcontracting fees paid or payable by Lanon
Development to the Group in respect of the transactions under
the Framework Subcontracting Agreement for the year ended
31 March 2025 was nil, which was within the annual cap set for
the year ended 31 March 2025 of HK$690 million.

Furthermore, the maximum amount of subcontracting fees
payable by the Group to Lanon Development under the
Framework Contracting Agreement for the years ending 31
March 2023, 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 shall not
exceed the proposed caps of HK$280 million, HK$600 million
and HK$690 million, respectively.

The total subcontracting fees paid or payable by the Group to
Lanon Development in respect of the transactions under the
Framework Subcontracting Agreement for the year ended 31
March 2025 was HK$602 million, which was within the annual
cap set for the year ended 31 March 2025 of HK$690 million.
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Framework Agreements with WHSE

On 29 August 2024, the Company (for and on behalf of itself
and any of its subsidiaries) and Wing Hong Shun Enterprises
Limited (“WHSE”, a company controlled by Mr. NGAI Chun
Hung) entered into a framework subcontracting agreement and
a framework contracting agreement, (collectively the “WHSE
Framework Agreements”), pursuant to which any members of
the Group and WHSE could engage the counterparty from time
to time in respect of the provision of contracting services as

specified in the respective agreements for the period up to 31

March 2027.

Each of the WHSE Framework Agreements constitutes a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in
respect of the largest proposed annual caps under each of
the WHSE Framework Agreements were more than 5% and
more than HK$10 million, the entering into of each of the
WHSE Framework Agreements constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The WHSE Framework Agreements and the respective
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent Shareholders by way of poll on 29 November
2024. For further details of the WHSE Framework Agreements,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29
August 2024 and 29 November 2024, and the circular of the
Company dated 25 October 2024.

The maximum amount of subcontracting fees payable
by WHSE to the Group under the WHSE Framework
Subcontracting Agreement for the years ending 31 March
2025, 31 March 2026 and 31 March 2027 should not exceed the
caps of HK$123 million, HK$202 million and HK$245 million,

respectively.
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The total subcontracting fees paid or payable by WHSE to
the Group in respect of the transactions under the WHSE
Framework Subcontracting Agreement for the period ended 31
March 2025 was HK$54 million, which was within the annual
cap set for the year ended 31 March 2025 of HK$123 million.

Furthermore, the maximum amount of subcontracting fees
payable by the Group to WHSE under the WHSE Framework
Contracting Agreement for the years ending 31 March 2025,
31 March 2026 and 31 March 2027 should not exceed the
proposed caps of HK$498 million, HK$766 million and
HK$633 million, respectively.

The total subcontracting fees paid or payable by the Group
to WHSE in respect of the transactions under the WHSE
Framework Contracting Agreement for the period ended 31
March 2025 was HK$59 million, which was within the annual
cap set for the year ended 31 March 2025 of HK$498 million.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions set out above, where appropriate, and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were

entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole;

(iii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(iv) has not exceeded the specified caps.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditor, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued
an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the above continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements. As for those material related party transactions
that set out in note 36 to the financial statements also
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Company has complied with the
relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year, and the details of
which have been disclosed in the above section “Continuing
Connected Transactions”. Other related party transactions do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined mandatory provident fund schemes
(the “MPF Schemes”), which have been registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees (including the Executive Directors). Assets of the
MPF Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to
the rules of the MPF Schemes, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions at rates specified in the
MPF Schemes. The only obligation to the Group with respect
to the MPF Schemes is to make the required contributions

under these schemes.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
This subsidiary is required to contribute 5% of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the public
as at the date of approval of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company had no

disclosure obligation pursuant to Rules 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no other significant event relevant to the business
or financial performance of the Group that has come to the
attention of the Directors subsequent to the year ended 31
March 2025 and up to the date of approval of this annual
report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “OUTLOOK” under the
section “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” of this annual report
for an indication of the likely future development in the

Group’s business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information on
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT?” contained in this annual report.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by

the Group and recommended to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as external auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

There has been no change of the auditor of the Company in the

preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board of
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

YAU Kwok Fai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 212, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
I e it 23 0 (60

BOR R TREPE B AT B2 H) IR
(B2 REM A 2 AR A7)

Key audit matter

B e e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A A7 sk 05 do ol L B G it 29 0

Accounting for construction contracts

RG] R

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
and costs recognised for contract works amounted to
approximately HK$7,834 million and HK$7,165 million,
respectively.

BRERCHFEEA=Z1T—HILEE - BEERGH
TR R WO B AR 43 3 s 497,834 F #5 M C ) 7,165 H

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time using the output method, based on
direct measurements of the values transferred by the Group
to the customers with reference to the certified values of
works performed up to the end of the reporting period.
The contract costs are recognised when work is performed,
together with any provision for expected future losses.
HAEERARESAMBARBEETE HEENE
FEEMEE  K2FHEREH RO T2 K% EH
B > B O AE — B IRE ) TR o A A AR Y ARG
I i 2 ) A o LT AR 20 s 4 A Tl 20,

The Group’s revenue and costs for contract works were
significant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements
and the recognition of profit on construction contracts
required significant management judgement and estimate,
particularly in forecasting the costs to complete a contract,
in valuing contract variations, claims and potential
liquidated damages and in estimating the amount of
expected future losses.

HAEMB G TRBARRARY RS MR
JB§ TR - T R S A Y ) R B ) T A
Ab o UHR B %8R A AR - AL - HERK
TEE AR 700 Wl BB R AT DA Bl T TEUB00 R 2 s 48 4 8 o

The accounting policies and disclosures for the revenue and
costs of construction contracts are included in notes 3, 4, 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

A7 R S B WO B AR 1 B BOOR B S 8% - BUR AR
W HEME - 4 GRTN o

We performed the following procedures in relation to the
recognition of revenue and costs for construction contracts:

A OO R A HV A B A AT DL R AR

e understanding and evaluating the Group’s process
and control over contract revenue and contract costs
recognition and budget estimation;

o TRREME AR A AWK A B AR DL K
Pt TR 4 ] s

e testing the calculation of the revenue and profit
recognised from construction contracts;

o EUE A A HERD I B R B

e  agreeing the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation to the employers’ latest
architect certificates or payment certificates;

o [ RESE A AT R S A B R S B R A A kR W
ZBHEERERE

e discussing with management and the respective project
teams about the progress of major projects and the
estimates and assumptions adopted in the forecast of
contract costs, including estimated costs to completion
and assessment of potential liquidated damages for
major contracts; and

o AL PG MM B SE K e R O DL & TR
T4 49 A BT BR A0 0 A 5 BBk > L H AN IR TR
A Je B R TEAE B L) B 2 RPAG 0 R

® testing the supporting documents of the budgets
and actual costs incurred on a sampling basis, which
include sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts/invoices and price quotations, etc.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
I e it 23 0 (60

BOR AR LRI AT B2 W JBR
(B2 REM A 2 AR A7)

Key audit matter

B e e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A A7 sk 05 do ol L B G it 29 0

Impairment assessment of an office building under construction

WL LK DA A

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment was an office building under construction
located in Hong Kong (the “Office Building”) with a net
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,340 million,
including the related leasehold land of approximately
HK$754 million and construction in progress of
approximately HK$586 million.
MREOBRDHEZHA=ZT—H o REEZWE - BB KK
BRI R W AR A R (T A KM > IR
WA A 1,340 ST - I E L7540 5
WIC K AEE TREAI586 F # T

Management performed impairment assessments on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment where an indicator
of impairment exists on individual cash-generating unit or
asset.

B o) B e LA B R ) B AR G > A B
AR A3 - DS B B AT IRAE AR

During the year, impairment loss of HK$199 million was
recognised on the Office Building to write down its carrying
amount to the recoverable amount.

FRAREEBE > H A JMETHE 8 WA 1R 199 | # s T - I LR
TE LU 2 T A el o

We performed the following procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of the Office Building:

FRAT I 2> M B IR A RE A5 AT DA T AT

e  obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared
by the external valuer engaged by the Group;

o BERNREEA N T4 M P HE AT A HD I Al AL B A ] Ak
RS 3

e assessing the external valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise and considering its
objectivity and independence; and

o HRAH AN AL G M B A - RREE R - KB R
bk s &

e involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in the assessment of the valuation methodology
applied and the key parameters adopted in the
valuation.

o RS FRAM A PR A S 5K b Bl B A A 4 £ i
Ji PG RR B2 2 W
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
I e it 23 0 (60
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BOR AR LRI AT B2 W JBR
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Key audit matter

B kA it g0

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AV A7 7 w05 Jon o o I I B it e 0K

WL AL KA1 A A ()

Impairment assessment of an office building under construction (continued)

The recoverable amount was determined based on the
higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use
calculation. Management has estimated the fair value
less cost of disposal of the Office Building based on the
valuation performed by an external valuer. The impairment
assessment is significant to our audit due to the materiality
of the net carrying amount of Office Building and
significant judgements and estimations involved in the
assessment of the recoverable amount.

TR T LR A S UK A e o L
P G A o A LR AR B A1 Il RO AT A
RO R G A B DR B AR o A A A 1
At TARRRFE R - i pla 7 0 20 DKM R i 3 Py T B2
VL B e Al Y W I 6 AR T 95 % i R KM B e Al o

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment
assessment of the Office Building are included in notes 3, 4
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Oor error.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. CHUNG Ho Ling
(practising certificate number: P06558).

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

26 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L0Ss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B3 18 i B U Al 2 i WA %
Year ended 31 March 2025 #E_FE_HE=H="1—HILE}E
2025 2024
e e X B <y 11 £ 2
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF# F#x
REVENUE WA 6 7,968,813 5,511,537
Cost of sales B AR (7,386,316) (5,187,993)
Gross profit V| 582,497 323,544
Other income and gains HAd e A R 2% 6 49,275 49,357
Administrative expenses AT BA % (88,121) (87,707)
Impairment on property, Y ~ W5 B s I AE
plant and equipment 7 (199,043) -
Finance costs MR 8 (29,049) (34,761)
Share of profits and losses of AL &8 A IR A
joint ventures 785 184
Share of profits and losses of associates 4 i #5 2A w] #H 2% 1,593 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX I B 1y 6k ) 7 317,937 250,617
Income tax expense B3 A B 2 11 (89,375) (45,728)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4F 4 %A 228,562 204,889
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  H:fib 4 i &5 4
Other comprehensive loss that A AR S ] W) RE R 4 S 2
may be reclassified to profit or loss H 2% 0 HAb 2 1R -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of — — [ Bt J& 2 5] W& A w2
a subsidiary and associates WA e 250 (11,063) (7,597)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  4F Py i 2 i 5 4
FOR THE YEAR (11,063) (7,597)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE A5 P 2 i BN B8 8
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 217,499 197,292
Profit for the year attributable to B W R B AL A R
owners of the parent 228,562 204,889
Total comprehensive income for the year B2\ 36 3 BEAG4E N 21
attributable to owners of the parent N 217,499 197,292
EARNINGS PER SHARE REA BRI H
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY  MEA# 45 Bt 5
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR W (WA) 13 11.43 10.24
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PoOSITION

7, N
AWM BN R
31 March 2025 ZZE_ZHE=H=4+—H
2025 2024
ZRTHAR B <y 11 £ 2
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A T F#x
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FE U B ¥ e
Property, plant and equipment W~ B Mkt 14 1,788,769 1,612,720
Intangible asset W& 16 25,000 25,000
Investment in joint ventures NEESENRE 17 69,593 78,808
Investment in associates QA= RO S 2 g 19 1,510 =
Financial assets at fair value through AP EFTAEZRZ
profit or loss ARVE E 23 11,852 11,665
Total non-current assets FETR B & A Al 1,896,724 1,728,193
CURRENT ASSETS TR
Accounts receivable JE WL R 2k 20 245,964 75,755
Contract assets HHIEE 21 1,248,021 814,160
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATSKIE ~ oA RE Wk &
other assets HoAl & e 22 146,338 193,413
Tax recoverable A Wi [l i JE 514 1,504
Restricted cash % PR B4 24 - 14,704
Cash and cash equivalents BREeRBRE%MY 24 1,741,032 2,077,918
Total current assets ) A AR A 3,381,869 3,177,454
CURRENT LIABILITIES R 14
Accounts payable JEAT R 2K 25 1,998,882 1,074,198
Tax payable JE A B 1E 57,571 9,117
Other payables, accruals and HAph AT 3 ~ ERTE &
contract liabilities EHIAME 26 1,462,571 1,716,194
Interest-bearing bank loans A B ERAT Bk 27 6,008 486,700
Total current liabilities i B AL AR 3,525,032 3,286,209
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES Rt 3Bl £ A3 ¥ (143,163) (108,755)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 5 A 480 U ) £
LIABILITIES 1,753,561 1,619,438




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F | 95

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

e W RO ()
31 March 2025 ZZE_ZHE=H=4+—H
2025 2024
SR | SRS
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF# F#x
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ i 8 i i i 18 £ 1%
LIABILITIES 1,753,561 1,619,438
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES i ) 114
Other payables Al A5} 3k 26 16,094 -
Deferred tax liabilities AR S B £ AR 28 2,402 1,872
Total non-current liabilities e E B A 18,496 1,872
Net assets R S 1,735,065 1,617,566
EQUITY )
Equity attributable to owners of B T F5 A B REAN RE
the parent
Issued capital EBAT A 29 20,000 20,000
Reserves Tt 31 1,715,065 1,597,566
Total equity HERERS 1,735,065 1,617,566
YAU Kwok Fai LEE Hang Wing, James
i B R ZEhizH
Director Director

#H #HF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuUiITY

B B A 5 ) o

Year ended 31 March 2025 #E_FE_HE=H="1—HILE}E

Attributable to owners of the parent

B H R % A
Issued Share Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
CRITRA  Rfef  EARE  ERREE RERA ARESR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T#T T8 T T#7T T#7T T#7T
(note 31(b))
(HaE31(b))
At 1 April 2023 RoR-=ZHENHA—H 20,000 574,485 (36,742) (6,217) 968,748 1,520,274
Profit for the year A WA - - - - 204,889 204,889
Other comprehensive loss FEREAb2 B
for the year:
Exchange differences on — i A W < 45
translation of a subsidiary M 5 2% % - - - (7,5917) - (7,597)
Total comprehensive income/  4ENZMERA,/ (EH)
(loss) for the year 4z - - - (7,597) 204,889 197,292
2022/23 final dividends RO/ TEE
A BB - - - - (100,000)  (100,000)
At 31 March 2024 and e L S
1 April 2024 ZAZ+—Hk
“EZTUENH—H 20,000 574,485% (36,742)* (13,814)* 1,073,637* 1,617,566
Profit for the year A A - = = = 228,562 228,562
Other comprehensive loss FERH 2T
for the year:
Exchange differences on — Fi 2 %
translation of a subsidiary B AFzZ
and associates W A = = = (11,063) = (11,063)
Total comprehensive income/ — 4ENZTILA /(R )
(loss) for the year Ham = - - (11,063) 228,562 217,499
2023/24 final dividends CRCO=E T
A B - - - - (100,000)  (100,000)
At 31 March 2025 RoRT A
ZH=+—H 20,000 574,485% (36,742)* (24,877y%  1,202,199* 1,735,065
b These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * GEIE ARG A MBI ERN S

HK$1,715,065,000 (2024: HK$1,597,566,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

1,715,065,0009 78 ( & —PY4E & 1,597,566,000%

JL) °



Year ended 31 March 2025

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows

HAEBERER

BEZFEHFEZH=A—HILFERE

2025 2024
ZRTHAE i a3
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mtk F#xL TF#or
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXHGZB &R
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Bt Bl i 1 317,937 250,617
Adjustments for: BT & TH B AE o R
Finance costs HEEH 8 29,049 34,761
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures  JEAN A& A ¥EH (785) (184)
Share of profits and losses of associates B A W 2 4 ) 4L A (1,593) =
Interest income FEMA 6 (45,107) (47,411)
Depreciation of owned assets HEGENITE 7 9,831 8,488
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 18 FAHE G B T 7 119,008 65,220
Impairment on property, plant and W - BE Kk e
equipment 7 199,043 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and WEmE - W5 R R
equipment 10 S
Write-off of property, plant and equipment S - B Bk i 7 - 296
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair A TAER AR
value through profit or loss AT A AT W 6 (187) (287)
627,206 311,500
Decrease in inventories TR = 3,383
Decrease in accounts receivable JRE W R ki A 205,002 416,546
Increase in contract assets B K (809,072) (467,529)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables — FEATZKIE ~ Hifth E Wk K
and other assets LA 49,076 207,872
Increase in accounts payable JREASF R 2 38 924,684 134,869
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, Hofb A - FERHEH K&
accruals and contract liabilities HHAERMm (W) (318,811) 224,228
Cash generated from operations BEMBZI4E 678,085 830,869
Interest received R B 43,106 42,358
Interest paid [EEEEP5S (29,049) (34,261)
Hong Kong profits tax paid CAT B A (39,401) (90,172)
Net cash flows from operating activities R BT I Z Bl R 652,741 748,794
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BHREHZ B ST
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary which is not WO s 3 3 75 14 B 2 )
a business 32 = (25,000)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits W e I 280 400 H 8 =1 A
with original maturity of over e WA A (W)
three months when acquired 240,000 (240,000)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits PRI O HCH 3k 14,704 -
Additions of items of property, Wik - WRE RakfiEE
plant and equipment (353,972) (138,203)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, — HEWZE « K5 K ik a8 H B #4338
plant and equipment 259 -
Dividend received from a joint venture T — A A WO B 9,000 -
Return of investment from a joint venture — [ A R BE IR R 1,000 10,000
Net cash flows used in investing activities B8 7 B Z B4 i A (89,009) (393,203)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows (continued)

By B A G LA ()

Year ended 31 March 2025 #E_FE_HE=H="1—HILE}E

2025 2024
e L =T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mtk F#xL F¥Ex
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING R 2 B
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans PR T B 44,484 222,391
Repayment of bank loans BB BT E (525,176) (330,978)
Dividends paid &Ly ds (100,000) (100,000)
Principal portion of lease payments Tz A4 4 33(b) (70,561) (19,270)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEELIHZBARETE (651,253) (227,857)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN L& RBESHY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Win/ (WA ) S5 (87,521) 127,734
Cash and cash equivalents BRI Z B4 K BLEFHY
at beginning of year 1,837,918 1,710,743
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 258 Y 2 R (9,365) (559)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBE KRB ESMY
AT END OF YEAR 1,741,032 1,837,918
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B 4& KB &% M4tk 2 i
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 T SRAT S8 24 991,755 940,227
Non-pledged time deposits with original WO R 2 H AR =0 B W
maturity of less than three months JEFRH 2 W
when acquired 749,277 897,691
Non-pledged time deposits with original i R i B 00 H B = Y
maturity of over than three months AL 2 WA
when acquired - 240,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in B R VLR TR B4 ]
the statement of financial position Bl&SEY 1,741,032 2,077,918
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with W ORI H B R =M A
original maturity of over than FIJEHE I 2 W17k
three months when acquired - (240,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BeERBERIHZBE R
in the statement of cash flows B &Y 1,741,032 1,837,918




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are publicly traded on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office address of the
Company is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in building construction, repair, maintenance,
alteration and addition (“RMAA”) works, piling works
and sales of prefabricated construction units in Hong

Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), Golden Lux Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
immediate holding company of the Company; and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Golden More
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI.

ZEHE=ZH=14—H
Il

2 i) B4 B ORE
ZRTRRERARAF (TARAF ) 2 — 5K
P2 A S ML 2 R A ] - A R A
W22 5 A R W] (TBRPT 1) A B
BUE o AR ) A A % I bk %y Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° X2 7]
Z BB R F IR ST
15558 °

AR FE P > A4 ) T SL W A (AR
Ay [AREM ) R BFREF R T EE - 4
&~ PR~ Mol R (MR ]) TR - 1T
TR DA R 4 PR SR AL o

AnvESE (TR RS > EHEBARA
([T 5 i A T o A O (5% J 4 8 T
By 1) E S B 43 W) ) s A B R P B
Q] 3 BA Gy ] B S 1R I o ) Ay A PR
O] (PR 5 B A T R O S g 2
") e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e i ik

(continued)

31 March 2025
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name
AR

Able Engineering
Company Limited

LR TFEARAF

Able Contractors Limited
ZREEHRAF
Able Contracting Limited
ZREEARAH

Able Maintenance

Company Limited
ZRAEER PR T

Able Building
Construction Limited

ZRBEHRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

business
FEMR B B
B33k

Hong Kong

(R

Hong Kong
G
Hong Kong
g

Hong Kong

g
Hong Kong

W

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

2w B 4 MEERL (41)

A7 B W) 2 7 Z BB

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

ARAGHEMNBERR 46 Principal

Issued and fully paid

share capital Direct
T R BR
JBe AR H%

HK$12,300,000 -
Ordinary

HK$11,600,000
Non-voting deferred
(note i)

9 B
12,300,000# 70

JE 5 2 R A S T Ay
11,600,000% 78
(Mtati)

HK$10,000 Ordinary -
38 i 10,0009 76

HK$1 Ordinary =
Wm0

HK$10,000 Ordinary =

W38 B 10,0009 78

HK$17,400,000 -
Ordinary

W
17,400,000% 7T

Indirect

1A £

100

100

100

100

100

A ] T HE G A FEE L F

activities

HEREH

Building
construction

and RMAA

MR e

Building
construction

PSR ET

Building
maintenance

i SRS

Building
construction
and RMAA

M R

Building
construction

MR



(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Company name
R
Bright Wind
Limited (note ii)
W IR B2 ) (M i)
Gain Capital
Corporation Limited

A RA T

Wing Hong Shun

New Energy Technological

Co., Ltd. (note iii)

BN i 2% R NEGHT RE VR BZ

R AT (M i)

CWEF Piling & Civil
Engineering Company
Limited

BhFRATHE LA TR
AHRAH

31 March 2025
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

business
FEMR B B
B33k

Hong Kong
LR

Hong Kong

R

Chinese Mainland

H B P

Hong Kong

i

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR 05 i e Y i
ZFECRE=H=1—H
2+ B S RO (D)

A1 B W& 2 ) 2 Bk (%)
A4 7] T H MR A AR R ()

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

Issued and fully paid ANEEGRESRE ) Principal
share capital Direct Indirect  activities
T RS
JBeAs H% M R
HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
T M 1T WERH
HK$10,000 Ordinary = 100 Sales of
prefabricated
construction
units
W38 B 10,0009 76 S T AR
A
RMB307 million - 100 Manufacture and
processing of
prefabricated
construction
units
AR¥E307TH E T B K T
TR S A
HK$48,500,000 = 100 Piling works
Ordinary
HK$1,500,000
Non-voting
deferred (note i)
WA TR
48,500,000 70
JE 30 S R 0 A Tt Ay

1,500,000 70
(BitiEi)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A e i ik

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)
Notes:

(i) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
company or to participate in any distribution on winding-up.

(ii) Asat 31 March 2025 and 2024, the equity interest of this subsidiary
was pledged to a bank to secure a bank facility granted to the
Group. Further details are disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.

(iii) The English name of this company in the Chinese Mainland
represents the best effort made by the management of the Company
to directly translate the Chinese name only for the purpose of
these financial statements as no official English names have been
registered.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group acquired
a subsidiary and further details of the acquisition are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of presentation
In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given due
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in
light of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$143,163,000 as at
31 March 2025.

Il

2w B 4 MEERL (41)

A1 B W& 2 ) 2 Bk (%)
A4 7] T H MR A AR R ()

Wi :

R

(1) 2 2 MR 8 S B 470 OGS A0 Je B Ml
BB R 3 7 R AT A 2 B IR R R R
A B STRER] > 52 BT AT 4 2R 1Y
REF o

(i) REZFZHAERZFZWE=H=+—H >
% B A ) A R A T RAT > MR AR
B 42 SRAT AR B 2 AR o 3 — 2B RE I
WM L2 7 5R -

(iil)  HR I B SO AR M) IE R e A A8 - BGE
P 3L A W) B 5 S 4 W T AR 2 ) A B g 18 R %
S5 TV 5 R A T Al ) AR R R AL b SC A AR T
o

BECROESHE1—HIRERE » KR4
[ WG S — [ PR JBS 2 R > IO A — B R
A e B k3 28k 1) -

ER R LR A M A WAL
JEE S AR TR B A A SR I A
KBy o B T i 51 H I Al B Jig 2 7D
% - R EER IR -

ulBOR

2.1 253k
T A WA A I > B A SR A
CROHEZAZtTHZRB AR
L3 B 143,163,000 06 BOAR
A F R DR A [ R A B
.ﬁ )



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of presentation (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the liquidity of the Group is well managed with the
sources of finance available. The Group has unutilised
revolving loan facilities of HK$1,176,400,000 as at
31 March 2025. After taking into account the cash
flow projection prepared by the management which
cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
March 2025, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group will have adequate funds available to
enable it to operate as a going concern. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments
that would result from the failure of the Group to

continue in business as a going concern.

2.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for life insurance policies which have been
measured at fair value. They are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) except when

otherwise indicated.

2. fralBoR (%)
2.1 BHFEHE ()

KAFERRE  REBZRHE S
FEHRLE - AUHHES R - &
EEP R _HE=ZA=Z+—HEH
1,176,400,000% ¢ Z A Bl I 115 B2 B2 3K b
B oo #8 REAE HL AR Bl A i O
(HHEA _F_HE=ZH=T—HER
A A B ) & - KA EE SR
Ty A SR T A TR R ) I A DA L
MBS o Ik - BEZF A4
EAZ+T—HILEEZEAMERED
FRFR AR S R o

i 74 55 1 08 2 R A RS - PUSH A e
B o DR A S5 [ s MR i 3 L T
W Il 4% > DASE AT 6 2 W4T ) o — 2
BT P A Bt i B i M A
B B TR 2 JE A B A B
iR o BB S B A 0 456 TR A 4 I e 0k
A e A R R AT S T B
RUEC k.

2.2 L o

W% 55 0B R G 8 A O R A
(T 7 & €7 it bl 2> €y |) A4 % 75 94 B 5
Hesk e ke R > A BT A A U T B
e ) At A ([ & el
R ) R B ) B A W O W R Y R
R T A B o B N F7 O B DR B 4% 2 P
At A > T R S RA SR AR o B
s oe ([ oe 1) 5 - i B 53 A 3
FH > B BUE S A B B R RO T A
([T#x]) -
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2025. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct

the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

2. HEFBOR ()
2.2 L (4)

Ao T 5 AR A A 4 R R SL g 8 )
BREFHAZA=Z1T—HILEER
PAB AR o W 2 4R A A B B K
T 4 42 o) ) B (B 95 A R M TR ) o
il A< 5 [ 25 348 22 B4 1 S O S5 1 A
B RGBS Oy e TR [ > B A
fE ) S 45 5 T A7 B AE ) DS 2B I [
e > FUA SR I iR A T A (D
B 7 A4 I 4 7 45 8 5 O A B )
RE N Z B HER)

T — A UL T Y47 A8 2 WA SR R A%
HIRE Z AR o WA A F] B R R 7
BRI DIRE R A RS % - et Al
Ao B CAR E J7 RA HEA RE  - A
R E AR EE RGN - B
15

(a) BERZMAE I7 S A B I RER A
ALk

(b) MRERICAL G XL A RER] 5
K

(c) ACERIE B H SEHE S TR 4 S o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the
exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair
value of any investment retained and any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.

2. HEFBOR ()
2.2 HRSEHE(4)

AR A ()

WOF i 2 ] BELAK 2 ] 4 A 5 A 4 SO
] > 3R ) — Bt BORA R - B 2
] P S A AR AR [ IR ) B R
frat B o AR BUAR B AR 2% S R
AR FE H Ak o

AR B % At 2 v C A # 2% AEL ISR 43 77 B
Jig§ TP A 5 B 4 W) R A T 4 T
g o BIBE L ER 5| Bk e BOME R A AR s B
Yo PR 4R I A A ] R LA
RERE ~ WO ~ BASE T A Lk B A W [
A2 5y A B 4 B it B R A MR ) A
BHREY o

ik 5 BT S DU EUR b Al = I P R
M — TS T B ) > QARG
TR Al L 7 A B T A R
— [H] B S 2 ) ¥ i A R B % A A )
(0 96 5 25 92 ) ) B A 7 E i 22 2 A\
HE o

i A% 4 T 2% 25 3 — [H] e S 2 ) 0 4%
M o B A ok e A R O (B A v
B - BRI R i S M
WAl 2 0 SR 4% AR AT T DR P B Y
O P e A A PR IR 7 A Y 8 B s Al o
e i A 2 v A R il B P A 4
B A AEL )% 8 43 B 5 ML e A 4 T L L9
H B B A A P R A [
e o TR A I A DR B T A (0
H) -
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards for the first time for the current

year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)
Amendments to HKAS I Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are applicable to the
Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the
lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use it retains. Since the
Group has no sale and leaseback transactions
with variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate occurring from
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)
(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements

for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current, including what is meant by a right
to defer settlement and that a right to defer
must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify
that a liability can be settled in its own equity
instruments, and that only if a conversion option
in a convertible liability is itself accounted
for as an equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a
loan arrangement, only those with which an
entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and
conditions of its liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and
2024 and concluded that the classification of its
liabilities as current or non-current remained
unchanged upon initial application of the
amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements
and require additional disclosure of such
arrangements. The disclosure requirements in
the amendments are intended to assist users of
financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity
risk. As the Group does not have supplier finance
arrangements, the amendments did not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting

standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these new and
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable,

when they become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?
HKEFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-
and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability!

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
Standards — Volume 11 and HKAS 7?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting

standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is described below:

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have
been brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited
changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements
for presentation within the statement of profit or
loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Entities
are required to classify all income and expenses
within the statement of profit or loss into one of
the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to
present two new defined subtotals. It also requires
disclosures about management-defined performance
measures in a single note and introduces enhanced
requirements on the grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) and the location of information in
both the primary financial statements and the notes.
Some requirements previously included in HKAS 1
are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As
a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings
per Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In
addition, there are minor consequential amendments
to other HKFRS Accounting Standards. HKFRS 18
and the consequential amendments to other HKFRS
Accounting Standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier
application permitted. Retrospective application is
required. The Group is currently analysing the new
requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS 18
on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s

financial statements.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting

standards (continued)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRS Accounting Standards.
To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an
entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have public
accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or
intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial
statements available for public use which comply with
HKFRS Accounting Standards. Earlier application
is permitted. As the Company is a listed company,
it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some
of the Company’s subsidiaries are considering the
application of HKFRS 19 in their specified financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments
to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments clarify the date on which a financial asset
or financial liability is derecognised and introduce an
accounting policy option to derecognise a financial
liability that is settled through an electronic payment
system before the settlement date if specified
criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to
assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets with environmental, social and
governance and other similar contingent features.
Moreover, the amendments clarify the requirements
for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The
amendments also include additional disclosures for
investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and
financial instruments with contingent features. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
an adjustment to opening retained profits (or other
component of equity) at the initial application date.
Prior periods are not required to be restated and
can only be restated without the use of hindsight.
Earlier application of either all the amendments at
the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting

standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts
Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity clarify the
application of the “own-use” requirements for
in-scope contracts and amend the designation
requirements for a hedged item in a cash flow hedging
relationship for in-scope contracts. The amendments
also include additional disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to understand the effects these
contracts have on an entity’s financial performance
and future cash flows. The amendments relating to the
own-use exception shall be applied retrospectively.
Prior periods are not required to be restated and can
only be restated without the use of hindsight. The
amendments relating to the hedge accounting shall
be applied prospectively to new hedging relationships
designated on or after the date of initial application.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied at the
same time. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address
an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However,

the amendments are available for adoption now.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting

standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or to
the cumulative amount of translation differences
accumulated in a separate component of equity, where
appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs 1G1,
[G14 and IG20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKERS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS accounting
standards (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments
clarify that when a lessee has determined
that a lease liability has been extinguished in
accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required
to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and
recognise any resulting gain or loss in profit or
loss. In addition, the amendments have updated
certain wording in paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9
and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove potential
confusion. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one
example of various relationships that might exist
between the investor and other parties acting as
de facto agents of the investor, which removes the
inconsistency with the requirement in paragraph
B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost”
in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior
deletion of the definition of “cost method”. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associate or joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the

Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to
be accounted for under the equity method. In all other
cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in

profit or loss.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an agreement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties

sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint

operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation; and

e its expenses, including its share of any expenses

incurred jointly.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in joint operations (continued)

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group’s interest in a joint operation are accounted
for in accordance with the HKFRS Accounting standards
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and

expenses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly

contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive

income, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss

as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly

or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and contract
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of

cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with

the function of the impaired asset.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it

arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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31 March 2025 ZFZHFE=H=4+—H
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. ¥ ZEEru1ER (4)
Related parties (continued) B8 05 (%)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Owned assets

Over the shorter of the lease term and
20%

Over the remaining terms of the leases

20%-33%

Leasehold improvements

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

25%-30%

10%

Motor vehicles

Machineries

Right-of-use assets

Leasehold land Over the remaining terms of the leases
Office properties 2 years to 3 years
Machineries 2 years to 3 years
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
any leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as detailed
in the policy under “Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation” above.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is

calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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31 March 2025

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other

payables and accruals.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of certain office
properties and machinery (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase

option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business

model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends

on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right

of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Reassessment occurs if there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the

cash flows.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the

remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of

the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due.
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31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset is in default when
its contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for accounts receivable and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that contain
a significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as

described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net

of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
other payables and interest-bearing bank loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (accounts and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, accounts and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the

cumulative amount of income recognised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting

short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Group recognises provision for onerous contracts
when the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance
obligations under the construction contracts exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under them.
The amount of provision for onerous contracts is estimated
based on contract costs to completion and contract claims.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and

revised where appropriate.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods

or services.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty

with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical

expedient in HKFRS 15.

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an output method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls over time as the asset
is created or enhanced. The output method recognises
revenue in accordance with the direct measurements of
the value of the services transferred by the Group to the
customer with reference to the certified value of work

performed to date.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of prefabricated construction units
Revenue from the sale of prefabricated construction units
is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the

prefabricated construction units.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.

Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the contract terms, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets. They are
reclassified to accounts receivable when the right to the

consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods and services to the

customer).
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised

as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically

identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to

satisfy) performance obligations in the future.
(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed

as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes. Employees
(including directors) of the Group may receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-

settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which

they are granted.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there

are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where
an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute 5%
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of

monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in

other comprehensive income.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit

or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other reserve,
except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit

or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and

translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

oA 5 e ik

ZEHE=ZH=14—H
3.

R Al BoR (59)

A (A1)
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31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=1+—H
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. XE&3 R RS (8)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not

qualify as an investment property.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Accounting for contract works

The Group’s revenue from contract works is recognised
over time using the output method and is measured in
accordance with the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligations. Budget contract costs
are prepared by management on the basis of contracts
concluded with and/or quotations provided by major sub-
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved from time to
time, the experience of management and current market
condition. The estimation of profitability of each project
is dependent on the estimation of the total outcome of
the contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract as the contract progresses. Significant
judgement is required in estimating contract costs to
completion, variation works and contract claims which
may have an impact to the total outcome of the contract
and recognition of profit. Actual outcomes of total
contract costs and total revenue may be higher or lower
than that estimated at the end of the reporting period,
which would affect the profit recognised in future years as

an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment of property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Items of property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or, in the absence
of comparable market transactions, discounted cash flow
projections based on estimates of future cash flows and
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows of the asset, less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is the construction
segment. The construction segment engages in contract
works, acting as a main contractor or sub-contractor,
primarily in respect of building construction, RMAA works,
piling works and supply of prefabricated construction units.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented. Further
details of the Group’s revenue from building construction,
RMAA works, piling works and supply of prefabricated
construction units are set out in note 6 to the financial

statements.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived

solely from its operations in Hong Kong.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong s

oA 5 e ik

ZEHE=ZH=14—H
515

®BE S WEN

WA BRI 5 > A {8 A — T R R AL )
HB > RIS o SO R DL AR T
ARG HREEGH TR  EEPRETE
o EETRR - AT TR DL R 3R B a4 AR
R o HI > SRS S HER - A
ACKR R F AT R A - B TR - ATHE TR
Te 478 B i B v Sl S AL R M — 2B
7 OV S 5 W Wit o -

ARG T S0 % BT A WO R L A
SR

b B
(a) HKEIHEFZHA
2025 2024
ZR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L F#C
7,968,813 5,511,537

The revenue information of continuing operations
above is based on the geographical locations of the

customers.

DI BB B Z MR k% P
JIi A M BELAS ) 4y
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

o8

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

BB EOR (51)

B I 2R ()

(b) FEiE) &

2025 2024

ZRTAE TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x F#

Hong Kong s 1,559,033 1,383,926
Chinese Mainland o 5 P 3 325,839 332,602
Total non-current assets I B A 1,884,872 1,716,528

The non-current asset information above is based on

the geographical locations of the assets and excludes

financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers which accounted for 10% or more

of the Group’s revenue for the year, is set out below:

Customer A

Customer B

R
R L

VA b0 7 RG4S A e B
ArE# S > EABFEERBIA -

EREPEH

Al A 4 ] A4 B I A 10% 8% DA b B & 5 ik

ABIIMF =

2025
e St X 2
HK$’000
T#x

2,867,456
4,376,331

2024
ZEFN4AE
HK$’000
T#7T

1,922,560
2,815,158

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from any other single

customers accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.

B BB A > BEAMEAEAT AT I M B — % P
it B A A AR B A 109% B E ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
9 5 B B ik
31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=4+—H
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA ~ HAbWA Bk

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AREEWAZSHWT -
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Revenue from contracts with customers KEHEFGHZ A
Contract works for building construction MR AEA TS 7,639,346 5,406,064
Contract works for RMAA works B TREZAEL TR 156,817 39,520
Contract works for piling works BT RZAEH TR 37,880 -
Sales of prefabricated construction units G TH S SR AL 134,770 65,953
Total At 7,968,813 5,511,537
Revenue from contracts with customers RKAZEBGSHZHRA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) SRR BRL
2025 2024
ZETTAE TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Types of goods or services 2 SR RS
Contract works for building construction — EFEEA L TR 7,639,346 5,406,064
Contract works for RMAA works R TEZEA TR 156,817 39,520
Contract works for piling works TR EH TR 37,880 =
Sales of prefabricated construction units S B TH L SR AL 134,770 65,953
Total A 7,968,813 5,511,537
Geographical market IR 55
Hong Kong s 7,968,813 5,511,537
Timing of revenue recognition THEE 2 e 2 1 I T
Point in time T — i [ e 134,770 65,953
QOver time i B ] 7,834,043 5,445,584
Total 5k 7,968,813 5,511,537
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31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=1+—H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HBA ~ HfbU A B35 (4)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Performance obligation
Construction works
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
construction services are rendered and payment is
generally due within 30 days (2024: 30 days) from
the date of issuance of payment certificate. A certain
percentage of payment is retained by customers
until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers

over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Sales of prefabricated construction units

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of prefabricated construction units and payment is
generally due within 30 days (2024: 30 days), where
payment in advance is normally required for the

contract customers.

Unsatisfied performance obligation as at 31 March:

RKAFEPHLHZBA ()
(b) JEHAIELE

HET R

B 70 B i I 243 St 0 R 2 v R
A K T T R A kR W H B30
(ZRUAE - 30H ) MBI o it ACHE
VI R T e ok PO R A IR DA o P A
#49 B 48 R o T JU0 T PR 36 I A5 B A i R
BT RE - W% P E R AT 2 A
AR R A A ok

BSR4

A FRH A R A RBAT
— B30 H (ZF 4R : 30H ) WEIH
3K > ME %P —RFEREMHIE -

REAZ+—HRBEATHERNELT

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#oc

Amounts expected to be recognised FEITA DL F Iy [ e s 2 WA Y

as revenue: L

Within one year N—4EN 9,080,109 8,523,391
After one year A—4ER 18,042,673 12,817,914
Total At 27,122,782 21,341,305
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31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=4+—H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HBA ~ HbU A B35 (4)

(continued)
RKAEPERIZBA (H)
(b) JEAEAT(5)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligation (continued)

The amount of contract sum allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are
expected to be recognised as revenue after one year, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied
within two to five years (2024: two to four years). All
the other amounts of contract sum allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration

which is constrained.

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is

as follows:

AR
BUR i Bl

Interest income
Government subsidies

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair

o SPAEEE A 25 0 < il E 1

i B 2 RIS I — 4 A el 2 O A B R
5 JE A0 BAT B 5 A0 AU 2 B A BT R
MERAE(ZFZNE : WENE)N
RERR o A S0ty 43 I 2 900 5 R A0 AT 1Y
F A BB —F R AR - £
S Y G AR 0 45 32 3 R ) vy T AR
18 o

A A [ 0 Al A R B A AT I R
2025 2024
ZRE AR TR PYAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
45,107 47,411
1,125 1,315

value through profit or loss A TAE R 187 287
Exchange differences, net [EE 50, % B 2,788 170
Others HoAth 68 174
Total At 49,275 49,357
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ZEHFE=ZH=1—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBLW# A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AL 2 BB A TR (GEA) T4
(crediting): I :
2025 2024
ZETTAE TR
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
i3 F#x F#
Cost of sales S8 AR
Contract costs BRI A 7,164,850 5,133,572
Cost of inventories sold B R 221,466 54,421
7,386,316 5,187,993
Provision for contract works, net*: B4 TR A
Additional provision A B 272,460 410,722
Utilisation/reversal 5 FH /1] 43 (695,484) (186,615)
(423,024) 224,107
Depreciation of owned assets™* SRR Tk 14 9,831 8,488
Depreciation of right-of-use assets™ 5 PR S T g 14 119,008 65,220
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B85 i Y 4 2,788 2,768
Employee benefit expense (excluding fié B 48 1 B 2 (A i
Directors’ remuneration (note 9))*: T 45 (i 7£9) ) *
Wages and salaries TE A4S 331,969 225,732
Pension scheme contributions B EFE A (R
(defined contribution schemes)** LR ET ] ) 8,756 6,255
340,725 231,987
Lease payments not included in the A DHE AR S AR
measurement of lease liabilities* A 15(c) 53,679 35,575
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #{E5¥3%E ~ W= Mk 14 = 296
Impairment on property, plant and L E 4 & RN
equipment 14 199,043 -
Government subsidies*** R il Wy e (1,125) (1,315)




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2025

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2025, depreciation of owned
assets, right-of-use assets, employee benefit expense, net
utilisation of contract works, and lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities of HK$8,239,000 (2024:
HK$7,523,000), HK$74,756,000 (2024: HK$20,994,000),
HK$336,568,000 (2024: HK$224,803,000), HK$423,024,000
(2024: net provision for HK$224,107,000) and HK$50,558,000
(2024: HK$32,537,000), respectively, are included in cost of sales
disclosed above.

oA 5 e ik

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

7. I%’ﬁﬂu?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ(%ﬁ)

BREF_AHF=ZA=Z+—HILHEE > 4
Bl 48,239,000 % 76 (= F . PU4E ¢ 7,523,000
Wt ) ~ 74,756,000 JC ( =& = Y 4 -
20,994,000 # JG ) ~ 336,568,000 G ( =&
TPOAE : 224,803,000 7T ) ~ 423,024,000
JC(ZF A« FEH224,107,000% 58 ) K&
50,558,000 JG ( 2 ZPU4E : 32,537,000 8
L)WM EBEEEYE AT EE - B
HBMBA Y - A4 TR FEEEAN A
HAMER RO E M ®B T A LB
BN o

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group, ok R ARE AN A [ AR A i 2 W ) F DA SRR B A Ak
as the employer, to reduce the existing level of contributions. IR B A K o
##%  Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational sk FHIISABRE FE AR _FE UE=H
Training Council and the Construction Industry Council, Z b H R AR BEE T W E I R S ik 3
institutions established by the HKSAR Government, for providing i (Fh B 5 R BT AR ) W > 43 i
time-limited financial support to employers to retain their RO M B AR B Kk O 8
employees and for providing on-the-job training for graduate JER TRR A R A IR A A IR B I o A B
engineers and trainees for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, S JHEAT: o] AR B AT B kAR B IE o
respectively. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMELEM
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows: A R T TR
2025 2024
ZRHAR S 1t S
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#T Fi#x
Interest on bank loans SRAT K] B 24,536 34,296
Interest on lease liabilities MHEAaENRHE 4,513 465
Total At 29,049 34,761
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),

9. HHFME
AR M 22 Pl 27 BT BRI (T i ) ~ &
WA FEMRGIZE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (o) K ()RR
Fe 0 ] (1 5 2 F 35 B0RE) AR 26 208 % %

(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and P ARAE JEE FIH AT -
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Fi#
Fees 4 1,200 1,200
Other emoluments: BERIE 1
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e~ AR EYA 14,425 15,674
Discretionary performance-related bonuses W75 L BAC AL 12,600 30,400
Pension scheme contributions IRR A5 3tk
(defined contribution schemes) (R gkt #) 54 63
27,079 46,137
28,279 47,337

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

(a) BLIEPATHP
TR A E P AT 8 1 R AT AR A

during the year were as follows: £WF
2025 2024
ZRTAE RIS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FloC
Prof. KO Jan Ming TR R 240 240
Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert R E 240 240
Dr. LI Yok Sheung el L 240 240
Ms. MAK Suk Hing 25U L+ 240 240
Mr. MONG Chan SR 240 240
1,200 1,200

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2024: Nil).

TRAAEBE > 3 08 A 8 S SR AT
ZHA S (ZF YL - 4E) o



9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 e ik

31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive

9. HYMAE(H)
(b) BATHE S R —HIEPATE P

director
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances performance- Pension
RE-Z-HHE and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2025 ZHZF—HI4EE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
78
K BERS k4
Wwa  EWANE O WBRL shs it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x TFH#r T T#x
Executive directors: HATES
Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel* B A S 2,459 = 18 2,477
Mr. LEE Hang Wing James** 24 5 A - 7,800 3,000 18 10,818
M. YAU Kwok Fai e 5 - 4,166 9,600 18 13,784
- 14,425 12,600 54 27,079
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. WIHME(4)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive (b) PUATHEP K — I &P ()
director (continued)
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances performance- Pension
BRE-Z A and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2024 ZH=+—H Ik Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e
MER WEER ke
e EWAlG MEAEA sk A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T ¥ ¥ T
Executive directors: WS
Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen*#** RS h o ek = 921 = 7 928
Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel*® LIRS Yt = 2,425 1,000 20 3,445
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai it 5 - 4,109 8,400 18 12,527
- 7,455 9,400 45 16,900
Non-executive director: FetrES
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung B S
(“Mr. NGAT")##* (TBR S ]) v = 8,219 21,000 18 29,237
= 15,674 30,400 63 46,137

Resigned as an executive director of the Company from 1
April 2025.

**  Appointed as an executive director of the Company from 1
April 2024.

Resigned as a non-executive director of the Company from 1
April 2024.

##%% Resigned as an executive director of the Company from 29
August 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2024: Nil).

o ASRITUENA - HREREARAFE
PUTHES -

R TRIENA - A ERE AR
APTES -

s TR TSR — B AR AR A
FRPATHE S o

s [ TR T ZAR )\ H L H R BT AR
AT H S o

TP A A J5E HOE 408 2 < i 5 G IR R S AT
T R (U4 ) o
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2024: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2024: two) non-director, highest paid

employees during the year are as follows:

10. 145 3 v 0 0 B
T AR BE N 4 B i TR B BSR4 (Z
BIOE  ZZ4)EF > HEZIMEFED
A ESCHEFES o RAEE RN RG=4 (2
TV - W4 ) IR B R B
EFFHWE -

2025 2024

TRTHAE ZEIA

HKS$’000 HK$’000

F# F#

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind i~ EA R EY R R 14,264 3,720
Discretionary performance-related bonuses ity 7% 2 B AH BAAL 4L 1,282 1,310
Pension scheme contributions BRE 53 Bk 54 36
15,600 5,066

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

T <5 J§ T 5 S I 1 A S o o S M 0 R
ANBIF

Number of employees

e BN
2025 2024
“RHAR TRy
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #5753 2,500,0009 75 - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7% % 3,000,0009 75 - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 #E 7T E 3,500,000 75 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #7C 54,000,000 4 75 1 -
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 75 2 9,000,0003 78 1 -
3 2
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11. INCOME TAX 11. Fif3 8L

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman AR U5 P 2 T I T i A T T IS RGN AR
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any Bl s AREEE PSS N BAAT SRS
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong TR BAN AT B A3 BE o B VA5 BE TG AL B AR 42
Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% PN AE AT Hs B A 22 A T E R e A 4 R R
(2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in 16.5% ( —ZF . PU4E : 16.5% ) 1E 5 - —H
Hong Kong during the year. A subsidiary operated in the e v PR A O BB A R R 25% (%
Chinese Mainland is subject to corporate income tax rate YA 2 25%) YA S AR R B 2R ©

of 25% (2024: 25%).

2025 2024
TRTHAE ZEIA
HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#x T
Current — Hong Kong B4 — 7 v
Charge for the year AAE BE 92,810 39,720
Current — Chinese Mainland B3] — v [ py
(Credit)/charge for the year AR (), B (954) 4,116
Overprovision in prior years phR ey ik iy (3,355) -
Deferred tax expense in relation to A R IR 25 A A 9 JiE A I B 3
temporary differences (note 28) (MtiE28) 874 1,892
Total tax charge for the year A R IE 37 AR 89,375 45,728
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

11. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

11. Prfe st (4)

30 FE T A AR 2 ) B FE K 4 B D 24 W i £
] R I 5 A B R A B B T ¥ A 2 B
T B 5 SRR P T B 3 R R R A I PR S 3
MR -

follows:
2025 2024
ZRTIAR R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x Fi
Profit before tax % A58 Al 5 A 317,937 250,617
Tax at the statutory tax rates TR EBLRF L ZBUIE 56,725 38,360
Adjustments in respect of current tax of 3B 1 S0 P BV A I e
previous periods (3,355) =
Profits attributable to a joint venture HE R — A E AR ERN (129) (30)
Profits attributable to an associate Bt B Y — PRI 2 A ) 22 W A (263) -
Income not subject to tax HEBBLIRA (7,558) (7,955)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z B 32 43,958 12,274
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 5 A 4 3 0 [ R 0 s 1R (5,247) -
Tax losses not recognised AMERR Z BLIE E1H 5,244 3,079
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate TR AR SR B BB R EH 5 BLIE X 89,375 45,728

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 17.8% (2024: 15.3%). The change
in the weighted average applicable rate was resulted from
changes in the profitability of the Group in the respective

jurisdictions.

The share of tax charge attributable to a joint venture and
an associate amounting to HK$325,000 (2024: HK$9,000)
are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint
ventures” and “Share of profits and losses of associates” in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BE R -HHA=ZA=Z+—HIEE -
BE S 2 78 F BE 3R %5 17.8% ( ZF Z 4R
15.3%) o JnAE -1 8 FH B 2R 2 % 1 75 PR AR 4
[ 17 R g I 2 28 R 8 ) A B T B o

— A8 A K — P8 A W A BLIE S
#4325,000¥ 70 (=& Z94E : 9,000%7C) 3
AR RN TS G B 2B K& [HE
1T 8 AR R AR ©
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. B8
2025 2024
~R TR TR TU4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fi#oT

Proposed final dividend — HK6.0 cents AR W B — B B6.0
(2024: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share WAl (R 4R ¢ 5.0941) 120,000 100,000

13.

The final dividend proposed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,000,000,000 (2024: 2,000,000,000) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

13.

TP S 9 A A S A M M ZE P M e B
AR R LA ) Z R At > 7 AT AR
E o

B ZY v 5 TR A AT A A DB Z A

I JBE e A ZR) 75 AR YR AR 4F BE R 4 W Ol
MEa F5 A H AL A R AR AT R AT
2,000,000,000/8¢ ( =& P44 : 2,000,000,000
Bt ) 5 328 M 2 Tl - 3 Wit 4

BEF-RERZRINE=H=+—H
RAFBE > AR 36 40 O 347 L ¥ A R
B I
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SECHESAS
14. Y93k ~ B Bt fli

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Right-of-use assets Owned assets Total
B AT it
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office Leasehold and office Motor Construction
land  properties Machineries ~ Subtotal improvements  Building  equipment vehicles Machineries in progress Subtotal
fkif
ik HEKER
fiLE WA BE Mt kB LS VX ] L] & ERIR it
HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TE#C  T#d L TEZ TEZ  T#x T#L TEC T L T#X
31 March 2025 ZECHEEREAH
At 1 April 2024: REFZWMERA-H «
Cost Bk 1,176,537 1,612 37,535 1,315,684 4385 239,965 18,960 11,482 17960 251969 544721 1,860,405
Accumulated depreciation it (183,479) (1,508)  (27,168)  (212,155) (4,385) (5,990)  (14,199) (9,788) (1,168) - (35,5300 (247,685)
Net carrying amount TR 1,093,058 104 10,367 1,103,529 - 133,975 4,761 1,694 16,192 251,969 509,191 1,612,720
At 1 April 2024, net of REFZMENA-H
accumulated depreciation N2 1,093,058 104 10,367 1,103,529 - 233,975 4,761 1,694 16,792 251,969 509,191 1,612,720
Additions B - - 151,843 151,843 - - 51 1,075 978 351,342 353,972 505,815
Depreciation provided ERGHHTE ()
during the year (note 7) (45,868) (104) (73,036) ~ (119,008) - (6,323) (825) (624) (2,059) - (9,831)  (128,839)
Transfers [ 154 = = = s & 11,243 25 = 6,347 (17,615) s =
Impairment (note 7) Wl (199,043) s - (199,043) & = s s s s - (199,043)
Disposal e s s = s & = s (269) s s (269) (269)
Exchange realignment [FE 3 e (1) s s (1) = (1,398) (18) (3) (130) 5 (1,544) (1,615)
At 31 March 2025, net of REZZHE=AZF—H
accumulated depreciation MR ZFHE R
and impairment 848,076 - 89,174 937,250 - 237,497 4,520 1,813 21,928 585,701 851,519 1,788,769
At 31 March 2025: REBZHEZA=F—H:
Cost WA 1,276,460 - 151,843 1,428,303 4,385 49,737 19,540 8314 25,135 585,701 892,812 2,321,115
Accumulated depreciation BT Rt
and impairment (428,384) - (62,609)  (491,053) (4385)  (12,40)  (15,020) (6,441) (3,207) - (41,293)  (532,346)
Net carrying amount T 848,076 - 89,174 937,250 - 237,497 4,520 1,813 21,928 585,701 851,519 1,788,769
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31 March 2025
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

14. P93E ~ W b3 Kot i (7)

(continued)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets Total
i) 4¢3 AHEEE it
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office Leasehold and office Motor Construction
land  properties Machineries ~ Subtotal improvements  Building  equipment vehicles  Machineries i progress  Subtotal
il
fEnE RERER
HELE BAEHE [ ANt b3 By BAERHE i) B hRIE /it
HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Ti#r Tt Tt Tkt Tkt Ti#x Tt Ti#n T#r  Ti#r Tt
31 March 2024 ZEIWEZAES-H
At 1 April 2023: REFZEEWA-H
Cost A 1213331 3,603 66,189 1,343,743 438 - 17480 14307 593 394,336 B30 177504
Accumulated depreciation Ritiik (B7650) (66 @5 (880 (4389) - (16581 (12440) (1) - (Ba) (6)
Net carrying amount i S 1,135,674 m 14260 1,160,913 - - 899 2,061 561 394,336 397857 158,710
At1 April 2023, net of REZZZZENA-H
accumulated depreciation N2 1,135,674 917 242600 1160913 = S 899 2,061 561 394336 397857 1,538,770
Additions HE 3,990 - 4,609 8,599 - - 157 4 1,131 131,281 134,213 142812
Depreciation provided B EHHETE ()
during the year (note 7) (4,883) (873) (18504 (65,20 S (6,053) (888) (586) (%1) - (8,488)  (73,708)
Transfers .14 - - - - - 242,501 3578 - 16,263 (262,342) S S
Write-off (note 7) W) = = = = = S (28) (268) S S (29) (196)
Exchange realignment L3k (763) - - (763) - (2413) (57) (56) 00 (11307 (1409)  (14858)
At31 March 2024, net of REBZWEZAZ4-H
accumulated depreciation R ZiHTE 1,093,058 104 10367 1,103,529 - 133975 47761 1,694 16,792 151,969 509,191 1,612,720
At 31 March 2024: REZZME=A=F—H
Cost Bk 1276531 1,612 31535 1315684 4385 139,965 18,960 11481 17960 151,969 SH4T21 1860405
Accumulated depreciation ZilE (183,479) (1,508)  (21,168) (212,155 (4,389) (5,990)  (14199) (9,788) (1,168) - (35,530)  (247,683)
Net carrying amount TR A 1,093,058 104 10367 1,103,529 - 133,975 4761 1,694 16,792 151,969 509,191 1,612,720

At 31 March 2025, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate net carrying amount of
HK$1,340,000,000 (2024: HK$1,235,822,000) were
pledged to secure a bank loan granted to the Group (note

217).

MR- HEZA=Z+—H > KEFKY
¥~ BB B A A R T 35 %% 1,340,000,000
WOt (R ITIAE ¢ 1,235,822,000800) OV
0 2 52 7 A 4 1 ) BRAT B AR 2 9 AR (B RE
27) °
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

At 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment was an office building under construction
located in Hong Kong (the “Office Building”) with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$1,340,000,000
(2024: HK$1,235,822,000), which was pledged to secure a
bank facility granted to the Group (note 27). During the
year ended 31 March 2025, the bank loan was fully repaid
and the bank facility expired, but the related pledge has
not been released, subject to administrative procedures. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Office
Building was neither provided as collateral nor guarantee
against any debt obligations of the Group as at 31 March
2025.

An impairment loss of HK$199,043,000 was recognised
during the year in respect of the leasehold land of the
Office Building included in right-of-use assets due to the
decrease in the recoverable amount to HK$1,340,000,000,
which consisted of leasehold land of HK$754,299,000
and construction in progress of HK$585,701,000. The
recoverable amount was determined as the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Since
the value in use is minimal, the recoverable amount
was determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
under residual approach based on a valuation performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer, which took into account
unobservable inputs, and accordingly the fair value
measurement was categorised within Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy.

14. P93E ~ W b3 Be Bt (%)

M- HEZAZ+—H - KEEZY
2 R Bk A G — e A A v L
o ROME (T 3 A KAl ]) > MR T
48 %8 % 1,340,000,000 ¥ 70 ( =& Y4 ¢
1,235,822,000% 75 ) » T ¥ 1 2 A< 4 ) 4
AT B Z I (M E27) - BMEZZ " A
EEAZ+—HIRFE > SITHERC 2 HHE
2R ATAR SIS TR - MR B HEH R A
B > MAFTBRE R IR o RARERR L -
MR HAEZH=Z+—H > A K
JE AR oy A 4 VB AT ] £ 5 B AR TR AR 9
P o

H 7 BT W IR 4 R R A % 1,340,000,000 ¥ JG
(42 15 AL & £ #b 754,299,000 #5 G K 76 # T
2585,701,000 % 75 ) - 4= A Bk 5t A HE
R B o R M AR B A T RO A s
199,043,000%7C o W] W Il x4 T3 #% H A F1E
T H B B A B HL S P R0 T 3 b 2 e
FE o A AR - w0 Il A A G AR R
E 8 . B 3R A A L B S R AT HEAT A
E(CF A B EWmALE) - HRHREN
AR TR B R A B b A R
SRR 2 O VA S AR A SR 3 A -

169



170 | Annual Report 2024-2025 F 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 5 3 3 B
31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=1+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - W Bl (%)

(continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and DI B Jatt 2 AR A T A D R il 4 e 2% e
the key input to the valuation of the Office Building for A TMAEE I E i AL R :

the purpose of impairment assessment:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Input
e Bl LV NIE E:2 PN WA
2025
SR TR
Office Building Residual approach Estimated unit price per square foot HK$9,200
VAN RS BF 5 WAL #H BLAE #79,200
— under construction
— Jrihp
A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated B F J7 R A5 5 B Y BLM R R B m 7 (I
unit price per square foot in isolation would result in a A ) N 2 3 2 KM T I IR 4 K I
significantly higher/(lower) recoverable amount of the /() o
Office Building.
15. LEASES 15. filfg
The Group as a lessee 7 48 1 A By TR BLA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of A BEA K A E L - AE
leasehold land, office properties and machineries used in YRR FZRIEEH MR E SR o WU
its operations. Lump sum payment were made upfront to MMEE RN EER RAZFEHNMHE LD
acquire leasehold lands with lease periods up to year 2047 ok AR AT — R AT R > AR B A+
and 2063, and no ongoing payments will be made under AL MK - AN & M A S AR AT BRI o
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office properties WMAEWERKBENMBEY M PHES
and machineries generally have lease terms between 2 Mo AERILERBRNZEMEGAE—P
and 3 years. There are several lease contracts that include WM -

termination options which are further disclosed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) (EFHEL &
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use B EEE(BFRYE - ME
assets (included under property, plant and equipment) T S M TE R ) A R i A % A A 4R B IR
and the movements during the year are disclosed in VA 38 B 7 B S R B R 1 4 T e R o

note 14 to the financial statements.



31 March 2025

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 5 3 WY i
B L =Y E .
15. AL (4%)
A S5 AR 2y AR RLA ()

(b) HEAL

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included

under other payables, accruals and contract liabilities)

L AR (B35 1 S o FE ) sk ~ MR
JA R A& HI RO IET ) Ao M T A B L AR

and the movements during the year are as follows: SEENREET
2025 2024
ZRB AR TR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C T
Carrying amount at 1 April P9 H— H r R AE 10,246 24,907
New leases HiIHE 151,843 4,609
Accretion of interest recognised AR T R R S 1 W
during the year 4,513 465
Payments Ak (75,074) (19,735)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=H=1—H iR 91,528 10,246
2025 2024
TR TR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Analysed into: Mk
Repayable: ZEIR DL R AR -
Within one year A—4ERN 75,434 10,246
In the second year i e 16,094 =
91,528 10,246
Less: Non-current portion & 2 FEFR B 4 (16,094) -
Current portion TREER 4> 75,434 10,246
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in FHEE B B B 40 A 3 R B

note 39 to the financial statements.

39 PR o
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15.

16.

31 March 2025
LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

15. #LEE (%)
ACKE M A By AR AL (50

(c) WAz HERH G T

2025 2024

ZRTAE TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x F#

Interest on lease liabilities HEAENNE 4,513 465
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets i FIRE& B PTEE X H 119,008 65,220
Expenses relating to short-term leases 1 Y0 L 5 R B 9 B S 53,679 35,575
Total amount recognised in profit or loss IR 2 e AY 48 4 %A 177,200 101,260

(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note

33(c) to the financial statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

33(c) Kz o

16. B &R

(d) FHEE R B4 i H AR A B 5 i 5 B

Construction
license
3t 5 e
HK’000
T#c
31 March 2025 “ROHAZEA=Z—H
Cost at 1 April 2024 and at 31 March 2025, net of ATEZETPUENH —H R E A
accumulated impairment EAZ+T—HZBRAK » fukk REHE 25,000
31 March 2024 ZEZPEZH=+—H
Cost at 1 April 2023 MR EAAMH —HZ AR -
Acquisition of a subsidiary which is not a business WAL — D A S s ¥ o JS 2 ) 25,000
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2024 B ZUEZH = A H AR T EHE 25,000
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group acquired
entire interest in CWF Piling & Civil Engineering
Company Limited (“CWF”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and the asset of CWF was construction
license amounting to HK$25,000,000. The transaction is
accounted for as asset acquisition.

The construction license is granted by the Works
Branch, Development Bureau of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”) to CWF. Through
the construction license, CWF is eligible to undertake
government construction contracts of one of the five
categories of public works, namely site formation with
no limitation in contract sum. The construction license
basically has no legal life but is renewable every year as
long as CWF is able to comply with certain provisions and
requirements set out by the Works Branch, Development
Bureau of the HKSAR throughout the relevant period.
As a result, the construction license is considered by
the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute net cash
inflow indefinitely. The construction license will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and

whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

6. M ¥ A (41)

BEZFNE=ZA=Z+T—HIEFEE > &
A5 1] WA I AT B R TR AT B D (86
1 —FKNEEREM L Z A ]) Z B
M ¥k F6 2 ¥ 2 4% 25,000,000 # 7T Z 2 4L h
W o 22 5 T A Y e WO IR

el S8 T o A R A B D (7 8 o B )
BRR)R THER R TER o BRE M > B
IR AR T S TR I — (P s i
PR BN E G - S A S8
PR o B ST 6B 40 7 8 B A IR 0 )
o A B R R B RIS 2 T RSO
RE > H SRR A b 3 J0E 9 AR > MR
AR A o B o AHE A B B A i R R
HECH AT R AT B AR 30T > 7% e R L 9 T A
PR SYT KB B A A o S S TR A 1 A
i8S > B TR AR AR A A R
1k o MR > HEREEZMMANH - EH
TRAR 5 5 IR 7 HEAT A B o
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16.

17.

31 March 2025
INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible asset
with indefinite useful lives has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”), CWF, which is included in the
construction segment. The recoverable amount of the
CGU has been determined on the basis of value in use
calculation. The recoverable amount is based on certain
key assumptions. The value in use calculation used cash
flow projection based on the latest financial budget
approved by the Group’s management covering a period of
5 years, a pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% and a growth rate
of 2.0%. Cash flow projection during the budget period for
the CGU is based on the expected gross margins during
the budget period. Budgeted gross margins have been
determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. At the end
of the reporting period, the management of the Group
determined that any reasonably possible change in key
assumption would not cause the CGU’s carrying amount
exceeding its recoverable amount and no impairment of its

CGU containing intangible asset is required.

ZEHE=ZH=14—H
16.

B ()

VA T R o M FRAE AR Y OB ¥ A
L4 Pl 2 B A e A AL (T B A i A WL ) -
WiFB > AL AFEAERES TN - Bl EA
B B R A D A MR A AR SR s
BESE o WML S BT R R T R BB -
PR P w1 SRR 7 AR 0 A 402 B 4 L g 8t e
P4 5 B0 B 7 TS (TR 25 54 S0 1))~ B i s B
K 13.5% MR HR2.0% 0 16 H 8L 4 B T
W o B4 AR BLAL R T M B R R T
0 DL FE S 0 U B R R R BR o AR
R 3 T AR 4 A0 A 3R B % A B i S 35 T 1Y
T A o FAERE IR - AR I 4 B e
A AT R SR A1 3t ) £ LT 5 B S B A B
A A A BT 4 MR G AR o G T e A - B
I 0 5 S SIS O ) B4 R LA AT
WAE o

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 17. RO BAEENRE
2025 2024
SROTAE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl FT
Share of net assets JEAN & B 24,578 33,793
Goodwill on acquisition W Jifs v 45,015 45,015
69,593 78,808
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. RSB AENHE ()
Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as AL FEAERENFEHNT -
follows:

Percentage of
Particulars Place of 5 A BN 5 b
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
P 5541 wk W %
#i BN BB Pt b BRHE OEANERR RREEH
Gold Victory Resources  Registered BVI/ Hong Kong 50 50 50 Investment
Inc. (“Gold Victory”) capital of US$2 holding
(Note)
Gold Victory Resources  sEFE A0 By Fd oy o yd Eigogcdis
Inc. ([Gold Victory ) ik
(Htik)
Note: it -

As at 31 March 2025, subsidiary of Gold Victory (together with Gold
Victory, collectively, the “GV Group”) is principally engaged in the
installation and trading of doors and furniture.

The above investment is indirectly held by a subsidiary of
the Company.

REZFZAFEZH=Z4—H> Gold Victory Z i 5§
2] (B Gold Victory#iH [GVIEM ) F2i1E S
M AR 4 R B o

e A ¥l A2 ) — [ B 4 R R A
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31 March 2025 ZFZHAFEZH=1—H
17. R B8 (4)

17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the GV Group, adjusted for any

TRBMGV S MW B B R - CHe
s BCSR AT ] 22 52 7 DL 8 > 3 SR

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the oy B T i S -
carrying amount in the financial statements:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Cash and cash equivalents B4 LB A5EY 50,957 15,342
Other current assets HAbFR B S & 9,930 61,353
Current assets W) A 60,887 76,695
Non-current assets FEF BN G & 374 974
Current liabilities AR (12,105) (10,083)
Non-current liabilities | N=E - -
Net assets GE T 49,156 67,586
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in AR B G VAR B RE 25 1Y
the GV Group: HIE -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A% 45 [ e HE LB ) 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets A [ AN A 24,578 33,793
Goodwill on acquisition Wit Jifs g 45,015 45,015
Carrying amount of the investment P& A I T 69,593 78,808
Revenue WA 181,093 111,216
Depreciation and amortisation P RSy (601) (1,402)
Tax expense BLIE A £ (157) (19)
Profit and total comprehensive income for A N R B 4 T WO B A
the year 1,567 368
Dividend received S e 9,000 =
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=—1—H

18. JOINT OPERATIONS

Particulars of the Group’s material joint operations are as

18. A BXEH
A E A A BT

follows:
Percentage of attributable
interest of the Group
Place of
o 5 PR 2 MEAN W 43 B -
Form of registration and Principal
Name business structure  business 2025 2024 activities
Eq FB LR ERUYE ST TRONAE | RO BEER
% %
Paul Y. — Able Body Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of construction
Joint Venture unincorporate services
PR — ARG ERYNE |- B PR SR B
BUILD KING - ABLE Body Hong Kong 49 49  Provision of construction
JOINT VENTURE unincorporate services
e — 22 PRI B S =P YNL RS PR SR B
ABLE - PAULY. Body Hong Kong 51 51 Provision of construction
JOINT VENTURE unincorporate services
B — REE A ER NG| itk PR SR B
Build King — ABLE Body Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of construction
JOINT VENTURE unincorporate services
FBE — RRE ERYNE |- B PR SR B
Able — Chun Wo Body Hong Kong 85 85 Provision of construction
Joint Venture unincorporate services
AR — R AN ER7 YN |- g PR SR B
Able - Square Body Hong Kong 67 - Provision of construction
Joint Venture unincorporate services
R —HE ER YN i FRAt S B
*  For identification only PR

177



178

Annual Report 2024-2025 & 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S0 5 3 3 B

31 March 2025
18. JOINT OPERATIONS (continued)

SRCTEHEZA=A—HA

18. 8 3R 8 (5)

Percentage of attributable

interest of the Group

Place of
o 7% 95 190 M AV v MG -
Form of registration and Principal
Name business structure  business 2025 2024 activities
Ey B HRIE X ERIPE ST CRTHAE | R4 REER
% %

Paul Y. — Able (TKO67)  Body Hong Kong 40 — Provision of construction

Joint Venture unincorporate services
REE-ZHR(TKOST) AE* Ik A\ MHHE R AL S B
Square — Able Body Hong Kong 30 — Provision of construction

Joint Venture unincorporate services
Wik —ZREE E YN i FRAt R S B
Able - Square Body Hong Kong 51 — Provision of construction

Joint Venture unincorporate services
LR — B e YN HH Rt e S AR B
Note: MaE :

Under the joint venture agreements, the joint operators have
contractually agreed the sharing of control over the relevant activities of
these body unincorporates, hence these body unincorporates are jointly
controlled by the Group and the other joint operators. Furthermore, the
relevant joint venture agreements specify that the Group and the other
party to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangement, therefore these body
unincorporates are classified as joint operations.

For identification purposes only

MR A 2 bk > 8 07 LA A 7 Kt R 43 %
S5 I NV R R B M R - O R S IR
N o A 4 B At 5 O SR R 4 o o e
R B 8 Bl T W A 4 I T 2 v LA %
BAELPERT RO A KA AR R &
[l R YN Tie VR S

o EBER
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19. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 19. R A w6l B %
2025 2024
e St X 2 “R4
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C F#or
Share of net assets AN B 2 A 1,510 =
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial F 35 5 s A A B R B R TR I S A R A
information of the Group’s associates that are not S ER
individually material:
2025 2024
e St X 2 e S 1t S
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# F#or
Share of the associates’ profit for the year LA g 48 O\ ) 22 A R 1,593 -
Share of the associates’ S AT O\ R =2 SEAth 4 1 s 1
other comprehensive loss (83) -
Share of the associates’ G388 W) 2 4 T WO a4 AR
total comprehensive income 1,510 -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AR N s A F R
investment in associates 1 Vi 48 A 1,510 =
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable represented receivables for contract
works. The payment terms of contract works receivables
are stipulated in the relevant contracts and the payments
are normally due within 30 days (2024: 30 days) from the

date of issuance of the payment certificate.

Included in accounts receivable are balances with a related
company amounting to approximately HK$15,000,000
(2024: Nil), which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.

An ageing analysis of accounts receivable as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the payment certificate

date, is as follows:

Current to one month B ZE—M A

20. HEWBR %

FEWCHR 3K $ A 40 TR MEWGR »  #0 ALK
AR B S AR A B A 25T B > A akod R
TR A R W H TR0 (R 4

30H) WA -

JRE Wi B kB RE BE — [R) B IBE R M A AR A
15,000,0009 6 ( =& ZPY4E « ) > 54,
AR 7H T B A 4R 1 R R PR A A B R

%o

AR IR - 3 Ak sk W H 9 2 B RE W

sk IR R A AT A T

2025
R TIAE
HKS$’000
T

245,964

2024
ZRg
HK$’000
T#7T

75,755

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 39 to the financial

statements.

TS SRR w17 7 A 5 S i 39 o 43k

%o
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31 March 2025
21. CONTRACT ASSETS

—EHE=H=4—H
21. A EEAE

31 March 31 March 1 April
2025 2024 2023
CREIIAE | ZFRDNE SROES
Z“H=+—+H |=ZH=+—H PAH—H
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#T F#
Contract assets arising from BEGREENSAEE
construction contracts:
Unbilled revenue PR TN 661,135 368,620 340,065
Retention receivables JRE W AR 4 586,886 445,540 488,612
1,248,021 814,160 828,677
The movements of contract assets are as follows: GRIBENZEHNT
2025 2024
TR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# TF#r
At beginning of the year REH] 814,160 828,677
Addition in contract assets BRIEEE M 809,073 467,529
Transfer to accounts receivable RS 25 I WA IR K (375,212) (482,046)
At end of the year ER 1,248,021 814,160

Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents
the Group’s right to receive consideration for the work
performed and not yet certified by customers because the
rights are conditional upon the quality and quantity check
by the customers on the construction work performed
by the Group and the work is pending for the payment
certification by the customers. Contract assets regarding
unbilled revenue are transferred to accounts receivable
when the rights become unconditional, which is typically
at the time the Group obtains the payment certification of
the performed construction work from the customers.

AEA T #0 E R B B AR AR B B
T T2 AE R 7 %% 5 A% S W TR IO AR Y
> PR AH R AR R e & B4R B L e
TR A AR M AT R b S AR AR DT TR
3 % 5 8% Ah kR I o A B R A R A
AR (— 2 A G2 B W B % 5 B i O T
Y 5 TR 2 Ak W 2 W) > SRR B
SN R B R B A A R O

,%ko
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Retention receivables included in contract assets
represents the Group’s right to consideration for the work
performed but not yet collectible because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. Contract assets regarding retention receivables
are transferred to the accounts receivable when the rights
become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry
date of the period for the provision of assurance by the
Group on the service quality of the construction work

performed by the Group.

The increase in contract assets as at 31 March 2025
was mainly due to increase in the ongoing provision of
construction services and decrease in contract assets as at
31 March 2024 was mainly due to the transfer of contract

assets to accounts receivable during the prior year.

Among the above contract assets, HK$263,063,000 as at
31 March 2025 (2024: HK$200,149,000) are expected
to be recovered after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 39 to the financial

statements.

The Group assigned its financial benefits under certain
contract works to secure certain general banking
facilities granted to members of the Group, and as at 31
March 2025, the aggregate amounts of unbilled revenue
and retention receivables related to such contract
works pledged to secure the relevant banking facilities
were HK$20,078,000 (2024: HK$164,210,000) and
HK$1,583,000 (2024: HK$50,679,000), respectively (note
27).

1. &0 % R (57)

A H BE  HE AAR F AC SR RE L
AL A TR A TR MR R > I
A B RER ZE 15 % 5 £ K0T B A T 30 2
85 B B A N R D AR o A R R
Ry AR (— B2 A 45 T Bt U6 T2 PR s 56 T
T A e 2 R SR AR BT P B S ) > B
B WA Rl < R ) 9 260 S i RS 3 M O
% o

AREER FHE=A=H— B mE
S F T FR5 A8 B3 S R B B - T
MEEPR FNFE=A=Z1THEHP ER
ik PP AR PRI A R ORI
o

MR- HEZA=Z+—H s R EERAH
& B P 263,063,000 9 U0 ( = F PG 4E ¢
200,149,000 ¢ ) TE 31 B e 5 B K 4+ A
HA&WE o

PO 5 400K B9 o A7 7 S 85 e A MY 39

AR SRR T A A TR M A 25
VLA A 32 7 A 45 T R B W) B A T — AR
g - R_F_HE=ZH=1—H - H
FH B & 40 TR A BROR T DAR AR 2 A B AR
AT 1l s IR 0 oA B B I OO TR R AR T 4
B84 43 B %4 20,078,000 70 ( & Y4 ¢
164,210,000¥75) & 1,583,000% 76 (=F =Y
4 1 50,679,000970 ) (Ff3E27) -
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  22. FAFak o ~ i i B0k B oAb % A

OTHER ASSETS

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

T-# 0 T

Prepayments TEAT 3K IH 132,805 71,946
Deposits and other receivables ¥4 Mo HoAth FE Wk 13,533 21,467
Loan to a joint operation partner M—%EEEBBEER = 100,000
146,338 193,413

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

As at 31 March 2024, the loan to a joint operation partner
was stated at amortised cost with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$100,000,000. The loan to joint operation
partner bear interest at rates of 10% per annum and was
repayable within 1 year, which was settled on 9 May 2024.

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 39 to the financial

statements.

s A B3t A i A <l 7 LI B T D A R
B WO B -

MR MEZH=+—H > n—&HEE
B PSR4 0 S R R 81 AR B MR > A4 48
#1%5100,000,000% 7T © ] 7% FEH B F1 124t
P B IRAERI R 10% 8 - 38— 4 W1
o He AT NER A IUH &5 -

T A B 1 O 0 A A B B A MR R 39 ¢
%O
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THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

PN R E

Investments in life insurance policies

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. #2A Vst ARG i

2025 2024
e Jaw K 2 ZETLAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#7T
11,852 11,665

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has life
insurance policies with an insurance company to insure
one director and one senior management of the Company.
Under the policies, the beneficiary and the policy holder
is a subsidiary of the Company and the total insured
sum is US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,160,000). The Group was required to pay a one-
off premium payment and the Group can, at any time,
withdraw cash based on the cash values of the policies
(“Cash Values”) at the date of withdrawal, which are
determined by the gross premium paid plus accumulated
interest earned and minus any charges made in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the policies. The
insurance company will pay the Group guaranteed
interest for the first year and a variable return per annum
afterwards (with minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2%

per annum) during the effective period of the policies.

The Cash Values which are considered a close estimate
to the fair values of the life insurance policies,
were HK$11,852,000 as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
HK$11,665,000), determined by reference to the Cash
Values as provided by the insurance company. The fair
value of the Group’s insurance policies was measured
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 of fair value
hierarchy) as defined in HKFRS 13.

W_B_-HFER_FZMNFE=ZH=+—H >
AR A [ B — R AR B W BT Sn N SRR LD, Ry AR
AT — AR T 4 A PR R B OR B o
MRS IRE - 285 N RRERA AR A L
v — [H) B RG> W) > g AR AR 48 A5 %% 5,000,000
70 (KA it £139,160,000 9 70 ) o A< 45 [ 78
FAT— U AR 2 o AR SR [ R B IR SR E H
3908 B0y B 4 1 0 ([ B A L)) PR B 4 -
H R85 O A OR 2 4880 BT e i . B TR
I B AR D5 DR B AR R B AR P A 1 =2 A i
HEE o DRI 2 B PR B A RO P e A 4R [ S
8 — AR B AR > AR AR IR LV B) ol it
(IR HRARAERHK2%) ©

PR A 20 N 750 BN P AN T 0 B4 R A
PR HEZH=1—H%11,852,000%
J6 (& TPU4E £ 11,665,000 5T) - 92 %
PRBE A F] SR I B A A E o AR R
PR 2 - fEL B A5 s T 5 e o Y JU) 2 13 58 P
JE B RS W] B A AR (A PR
ZH)FHRE o
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CRCTEHEZA=A—HA

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. B4 EB &SP %2634

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Cash and bank balances B4 IR AT A R 991,755 940,227
Time deposits FE WK 749,277 1,152,395
1,741,032 2,092,622
Less: Restricted cash (note) W Z PRGBS (M EE) - (14,704)
Cash and cash equivalents B4e B &5 EY 1,741,032 2,077,918

Note: As at 31 March 2024, bank deposits amounting to HK$14,704,000
were placed as guaranteed deposit for the performance bond issued
by the relevant bank in relation to a construction project of the
Group and such deposits will be released upon the completion of
the relevant project.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$22,796,000 (2024: HK$32,583,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with banks with high credit ratings and no
recent history of default.

=
ﬁ\_\f—

Fr R RIWNE=ZH=+—H > 14,704,000
V50 W SR AT A7 3K AT TR0 AH B SR AT A s 5% 8
AT AS 45 ) — JE 2 SR H B A A DR e
PR R A7 K > 10 B A ORI A B 0B B 58

IR - AR DN R (TARE D)5
B B 4 T B 4 B 56 22,796,000% 7 (—
F 4R 2 32,583,000808) o ARIEARREA
HY 58 40 A G b B R o AR v I A e ¥ (A
A5 BB ) B K45 B ~ B R D ) B 4 P
TE ) > A R Y 7 A R W A AT A IE SR %
ZERATH N R S A A B W o

SRAT B AR R HSRAT A ORI 7
B R AR A B o S A K B 0 R
E > H—RETZMMAARE - BPAEEE
BV IRE B 4 75 B o S 9 A% e A 1A R R R B
BRI, o SRAT A5 B B2 Ak 0 A IUE T 19
JR TP LSl 406 20 191 9 0 R SR A BRAT
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25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 25. MR
An ageing analysis of accounts payable as at the end of T R 4 B 5 W A s W+ 0 Y
the reporting period, based on the date of invoice or the JE A B KR B A AT I R -
payment certificate date, is as follows:
2025 2024
R RAE “ER UL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#r
Within three months =MHN 1,042,107 587,731
Four to six months PgE= A H 375,671 160,645
Over six months A A 581,104 325,822
1,998,882 1,074,198
Included in accounts payable are balances with a related MERHHE & b BB B A T &R B Y
company amounting to approximately HK$489,307,000 489,307,000 J¢ ( =& P44 : 303,871,000
(2024: HK$303,871,000), which are unsecured, interest W) > M MEREIE - B N oM B B R
free and repayable in accordance with the terms of the AR o
relevant agreement.
At 31 March 2025, retention payables included in MNRoZB-HE=ZHA=Z+—H > BAEXAS
accounts payable amounted to HK$388,942,000 (2024: JRE A5 43 3% 4> 388,942,000 76 ( & - JY4E :
HK$284,193,000), which are non-interest-bearing and 284,193,000 70) » KA RS B R —REEE
are normally settled within terms ranging from one to four WA P—FBPULE o
years.
Other than retention payables, accounts payable are non- W6 HE AR A A - BEATIE S B R at ek —ik

interest-bearing and are normally settled within 60 days BB g WA s i E g B0 R R

from the date of invoice or payment certificate date. B o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 e ik

31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=4+—H
26, OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 26. S % - B RSHAMHE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2025 2024
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A T-# L T
Provision for contract works B4 TR (a) 1,174,371 1,597,396
Contract liabilities ARG (b) = 19,526
Other payables At JE A5 3 (c) 194,429 55,910
Accruals g dif| 18,337 33,116
Lease liabilities HEA R 15(b) 91,528 10,246
1,478,665 1,716,194
Non-current portion JEF BB 4> 15(b) (16,094) -
Current portion mEER A 1,462,571 1,716,194

Notes: Mz :

(a) Asat 31 March 2025 and 2024, the provision for contract works
represents expected future losses to be incurred, in which the
forecasted contract costs of meeting its obligation, including
estimated costs to complete the contract and assessment of
potential liquidated damages exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under the contract, based on management’s
best estimates as at year end. The amount of provision is reviewed

on an ongoing basis.

RERZHFERZFRINFE=ZA=1+—H
A TR A S R A B R 4R R Z B A
b JEAT I F B Z W G KA (B R
R TRAC B A VB AR 40 4 ) R AR B
A0 T VT A AR 51 A 2 T
WIRAMER o BAESHT A2 EN
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31 March 2025

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received AR E %5 R TR K
from customers:
Construction services SRS

SECRESHES—H
26. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 26.

JCAb M A 5 > HE T # B A K9 fL A

(%)

ML - (80

(b) BHEEFEROT

31 March
2025
ZRTHAE
SHE N
HK$’000
Tl

31 March
2024

TR g
=A=+—H
HK$’000
TF#T

19,526

1 April
2023
WA —H
HK$’000
F#or

30,000

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for
providing construction services. The decrease in contract liabilities
as at 31 March 2025 was mainly due to the recognition of revenue
when the construction services provided to contract customers
during the year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected to be
settled within one year.

Included in other payables are balances with certain related
companies amounting to approximately HK$148,869,000, which
are unsecured, interest free and repayable in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements.

A0 FUAT LA L A A S 5 Y L i ) B
e GAHAMR_E_HE=ZA=Z+—HW
B LR TR N I G 2% P SR IR B
RERE RN

(c) A REAT 3K A A FE B > I FIAE — 4 i

1% -

Al A 3R A 855 B T I 0 ) P A5 R A B
148,869,000¥ 7T » #% 45 45 ik J L ~ /22

T AR A AR o e 1) Ok B
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31 March 2025
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

CRCTEHEZA=A—HA

27. Wl B 8T &k

2025 2024
- Sk X 2 TR YA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T#x
Current iU
Bank loans repayable on demand — AR BRI SRAT Bk —
secured and at floating rates A HEAR e F i B R TR S 6,008 2,700
Bank loans — secured and at floating rates SRAT B — A R S iR B A R
FHHEAE - 484,000
6,008 486,700
Analysed into: an v
Bank loans repayable: ZE DL TS IR [ 48 22 1) SRAT 803K
Within one year or on demand A4 N SR EE R 6,008 486,700

(i) As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s bank loan with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$484,000,000 was
secured by:

(a) the Group’s property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,235,822,000;

(b) the equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group;
and

(c) the floating charge over all the assets and
undertakings of a subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the bank
loan was fully repaid and the bank facility expired,
but the related legal charges have not been released,
subject to administrative procedures. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the above assets and
equity interest are neither provided as collateral nor

guarantee against any debt obligations.

(i)

Mo NE=ZA=+—H > KEMEE
THi 4841 %4 484,000,000 % 76 1Y SR 47 B2k
DL - TE AR

(a) A< 4 1B R i 48 %5 1,235,822,000 3
JCHYMZE ~ R B

(b) A K [ — [H] B Jg 2 ] i JBe A i i 5
K

() RACHE [ — ] Bt g 2 W) i A 7 I
SEHE AR I B AR o

BEZFHF=ZA=Z1T—HIREE -
MOBKCEBEBLRTHERDE
J1 - R B 9 R R R R AR B - R FRAT
BRR PR o RAFHERD SR - LIlkE
R T P A A i 3 408 A A e £ 2 A 4R 3
AP AR
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

(continued)
(ii) As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s bank loans with an

aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,008,000 (2024:
HK$2,700,000) were secured by the assignment
of the Group’s financial benefits under certain
contract work, which include unbilled revenue and
retention receivables of HK$20,078,000 (2024:
HK$164,210,000) and HK$1,583,000 (2024:
HK$50,679,000), respectively;

(iii) As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s bank loans with an

aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,008,000 (2024:
HK$2,700,000) were secured by certain deposit
accounts maintained with the relevant banks as

continuing security for the obligations of the Group;

(iv) The Group’s bank loans are all denominated in Hong

Kong dollars; and

(v) The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are

primarily repriced every month based on HIBOR

changes.

27. wh B 84T HE% (4)

(i) RZB_HEZHA=+—H - K&EMH
W Thi 484 %5 6,008,000 6 ( ZF Y
A 12,700,000 ¥ 7€ ) 19 S AT Bk DA
A T A TRR A ST R 28 (R
o 355 R B N e R R A 4
Al %% 20,078,000 ¥ ¢ ( =& Z 1Y 4¢ :
164,210,000 % 7t ) K 1,583,000 % 76 ( —
FTIYAE 1 50,679,0008 50 ) ) FEHETH 5

(iti) RZBZHAFEZHA=Z1—H » AREFEE
THi 4845 %5 6,008,000 9 7T ( % L IU4F :
2,700,000%5 7T ) 1§ 47 B 3k DL A BA 8
FTBASE Z % TR ak MR P AR IR > AR 2y AR
AR B AR Z R 5

(iv) A [ AT Bsk s DLV Tt 2 &

(v) ACHE B SRAT SR A R R AR A v AR
A7 ) SE 7 1852 ) iy 1R H) TR S £
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. BHEBLH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year ENIELERIEAENEEWT

are as follows:

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation
RBUBI YT
4 3 W
HK$’000
T#T
At 1 April 2023 WoR =AM H—H S
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during AR HE 2R 0 R 0 R A IE (ML)
the year (note 11) 1,892
Exchange realignment [P 52, i (20)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 MR- _NE=H=+—H
R TUENH—H 1,872
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during AR HE 2R 0 R 0 R A IE (AL D)
the year (note 11) 874
Exchange realignment iEE e i 2 (344)
At 31 March 2025 REFZHAFE=A=1+—H 2,402
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong A A P A us B B M Ay R A B
and Chinese Mainland of HK$39,638,000 (2024: T 5 5 % 39,638,000 # o ( & U 4
HK$61,568,000) and HK$18,263,000 (2024: Nil), 61,568,000¥ 7t ) % 18,263,000 ¢ ( —~F Y
respectively. Subject to the final assessment of the Hong M R) o R WBLE R RATEE - R
Kong Inland Revenue Department, tax losses arising in B R 2 1Y o T M 4 P LU 1K 6 A ks 1R
Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against A o ] B R 20 R R A o 7 e I PR e A
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses A 50 T e 1R P 1 BS54 9 B - m B HG A aE
arose. Tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland will expire A Ji 1R B A ) R 2R M R B HR A o PR AR Ay
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable H B8 A B 2 ) A K VT RE A SR AR AT A 44 I R B
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred o P HIK B % A A - WO S K A e AR R R R
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these JEREIE B o

losses, as it is not considered probable that the relevant
subsidiaries would have sufficient future taxable profits to

utilise such amount.
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28.

29.

31 March 2025

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. The applicable rate is 10% for the Group. As at
31 March 2025, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiary established in Chinese Mainland (2024:
Nil). In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that the subsidiary will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiary in
Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately HK$1,737,000
(2024: HK$964,000) at 31 March 2025.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SR HEZH =4
28. EHEBLIE (5])

S A5 [ 2B o R Py s S e B DS 4 Dk —
FH)\AE— H — H eI 2] HE 43 IR 4 Bt
BB o A B BLE % 10% o
MN-BZHFE=ZA=1—H » BERR P HE
P B v 2 A R T R 8 R (R AR
JE ) ZE S8 A TN B 2 R ME AR 2R 2 HE A FE 0
PR E B o HHET K > % ME A WM
A KRG AR IREERF] - R =F
“HEZAZ1T—H  BORMERIERRLIEA
R 7 v I P e PR B o W) B A B 2
WPk 26 BLAR B A %5 1,737,000% 0 (ZF =1
4 1 964,000878) ©

Aoy ] i B SR S A Je A T A BT A B
% o

SHARE CAPITAL 29. JBeAR
2025 2024
TRTHAE ZEIA
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#L F#
Authorised: W -
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/8 4 1t T {EL
HK$0.01 each 0.01¥ 70 2 % 4 it 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT AR -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 3% 45 JB& i {5
HK$0.01 each 0.01¥ 702 % 8 It 20,000 20,000
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital A AR A ) T A M 4 S ) o

during the year.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution of the Company passed on 31
August 2018, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and full-time
employees of any member of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 31 August 2018 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. Pursuant to the Scheme and subject to
shareholders’ approval, the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is such a number of shares representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
shareholders’ approval (excluding for this purpose any
share options which have been previously granted pursuant
to the Scheme and any other scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised)).

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date when the Scheme was approved by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to directors, officers or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

30. Jik JBe A it 380

WA A TR =T )FENHA =+ — HER
R 8 > A4 W) T ER A I TR A R (%
b1 1) > DLAR At 58 M K 5% 0 T A AR K
DR EAE R A B2 AL -
& G2 N L GFHEME R (BT
B EBER BT ES) R
SEEAET R B AR 2 BE E o &k E o
ZER - NENAZt— HAER > B A i
CACHE-ZIRE Y S AR Yy s SR EE ¥ a8
o MLBR ) B B B B AR A e > AR R
% wt ] RE 4 H B R 1 JBe A B PR R A
A2 W] R R A e H YT © AT BRAC10% HY
% S5 I B Ot BB T 5 A 4 456 A 0 % w3l
B AT Aoy At 5t 0 77 516 Wi 952 Hh 1 A S e e
(BFEMARTHE - Calsl - CRBECITH
A ) ) o

TR AR 08 5 51 8 3 DAAR Y LW AR i AT
i B AR S b R Y (AT AR ) AR 23 3]
A% T B A A ] B RO B RO b v
H O BT S8 A 10% o MR 1218 A #
H > MBRTZFIEELGEKSEALDY
Jife IR AR T AT B B E b B T RO A A W R
AT R [ B AT IR BRI 1% o ARATTHE— 2 4%
7 30 APk L A 11 % B¢ A 20 Pt RO IR K & |
ke o

BPARATES - &0 E R RO (5
GRUEEFE S PNFU) Y Pk S RA
FEBATE A o BEAh o AR 128 A B
W o AR 3% T A A B 32 2R S S R AT
o (SO o o <5 A i B8N ) A S J
AR A BT I [ B AT A B90.19% M A
A (DAAS A W) JBe Ay T 452 Y 300 P AR s 38 )
W5 HEWIT > AR LR AR B AR T B
ik o
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31 March 2025

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share

options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No option was granted from the date of adoption of the
Scheme up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES
(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
(b) Capital reserve
The Group’s capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares and the consideration in exchange

therefor.

SRCTEHEZA=A—HA

30. Jif e At 80 (%69)

31.

RN A AL 1T i 4 AR AR > B
Ji JBt M 2 B A W Y BE A HOBRE 14 K 9
A o F52 H BB #4700 T ph o E - 3
I 7% B J MR A HDRE AR R 2 H O A
¥ o

S Je R Vg A Ak T el S S R - AR AR
VAN B ¢ (i) A B B4R 7 i SR 42t H
W22 B B R ool 8 5 (i) AR ]
B BB A B AT AR R 5 H ORI A2 B
T Wi 8 5 R (i) A ) JRAR T

Ji Je AR I 9 R 5 A A MOIUBE B B JBE SRR
T EREZ R -

F w0 BR A U E 2 A v o S AR T i
RZ HW > WREESR AT W IR HE -

it i

(a) AHEM
A A5 T 1 AR A B TR 0 A A E W A % 3L
BEEFN O EREB LD RS -

YEA it i

A5 T 0 S A R 4 A 4 ) By i
AR 8 A 4 AL i WA ¢ O 2 B
T 6 % Je A7 v A BEL AR B T 5F £y A AR
ZEW -
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32. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY WHICH IS  32. Wl — [ Ik 232 %5 i b 8 2 wl
NOT A BUSINESS

Year ended 31 March 2024 BRE_ZWIE=H =1 — HILEE
On 31 January 2024, the Group entered into a conditional R WEE—-H=Z+—H > KEHE—HZ
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third S 55 = 07 T A oA R Tk e DL W T 58
party to acquire the entire issued share capital of CWF ZEMOBATMA - Bla A% 25,000,000
for a cash consideration of HK$25,000,000 (the “CWF HeTT (TSRO g9 26 1) o R U i R o i —
Acquisition”). The CWF Acquisition was completed on FWE—~H =+ —Ho8m8 o PR A
31 January 2024. At the date of acquisition, the asset BHHRZEELFBRHFEERER LERRETZ
of CWF was construction license granted by the Works Fr S R AR > AT R R R MR O B Y 2 B
Branch, Development Bureau of HKSAR and is eligible JHH - B¥ A 4450 AR EH -

to undertake government projects in the site formation

categories with no limitation in contract sum.

CWF
L E
HK$’000
F#oc
Net assets acquired: WL ) A
Intangible asset (note 16) WETE & B (M aE16) 25,000
Satisfied by: FAHR
Cash B4 25,000
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the CWF HRBFRBBUEFHEZ B SREITNT -
Acquisition is as follows:
HK$’000
Fite
Cash consideration Bl 25,000

Outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FIABRGEEB B SR BN I & XB4
cash flows from investing activities SN MR 25,000
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31 March 2025

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

ZEHE=ZH=14—H

(a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$151,843,000 (2024: HK$4,609,000) and
HK$151,843,000 (2024: HK$4,609,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for office properties
and machineries included in property, plant and

33. A B AW R RM

FEMHEBRERS

AR - AREEESE AWE - BB Kk
R A =W RS AL e
A B A A T REE A 151,843,000
JC(ZF Y4 ¢ 4,609,000% 70 ) K fL
A E151,843,0008 00 ( ZF Y4 -
4,609,000¥78) ©

equipment.
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) B P A Wy 1 S )
activities
2025 ZR IR
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities bank loans
AR sEREUTR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T#c
At 1 April 2024 R ZNENA—H 10,246 486,700
Changes from financing cash flows BG4 R E) (70,561) (480,692)
Loan arrangement fee B E R — —
New leases e 151,843 -
Interest expenses Ipshi- 3 4,513 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows 433 2 & Bl &R S0 O
*IJ A%\ (4)5 13) -
At 31 March 2025 RoBHAEZAZ+—H 91,528 6,008
2024 ZR g
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities bank loans
MEAE FHESRATER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#oT TF#x
At 1 April 2023 REZRZ=4ANWA—H 24,907 594,787
Changes from financing cash flows il B i A ) (19,270) (108,587)
Loan arrangement fee Bk Z P - 500
New leases W E 4,609 =
Interest expenses S8 465 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows 43 Z &R EBH &R BN O
FE (465) =
At 31 March 2024 RoENE=ZH=+—H 10,246 486,700
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33,.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the

33. Sy BLA U AR Wik ()

(c) RIEERAMBLIET I
FIAGABERERZHENAB &R

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HiTF :
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Within operating activities mMEEBN 58,192 36,040
Within investing activities WEEBN - 3,990
Within financing activities BVEEB RN 70,561 19,270
128,753 59,300

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Asat31 March 2025, the guarantees given by the Group
to certain banks in respect of performance bonds in

favour of certain customers of contract works amounted

to HK$563,367,000 (2024: HK$492,210,000).

34. SR
(a) RZF_AFE=ZH=+—H > &%
HRATAHNTENETERN
JB R R I 4 T T ERAT RIS R
7%563,367,000% 76 ( = F Z Y4 -
492,210,000# ) ©
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31 March 2025

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Claims

(i)

(i)

Personal injuries

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number
of claims due to personal injuries suffered by
employees of the Group or the Group’s sub-
contractors in accidents arising out of and in the
course of their employment. The Directors are of
the opinion that such claims are well covered by
insurance and would not result in any material
adverse impact on the financial position or results

and operations of the Group.

Sub-contractors’ claims

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to various
claims from sub-contractors from time to time.
Provision would be made for claims when
management assessed and can reasonably estimate
the probable outcome of the claims. No provision
would be made for claims when the claims cannot
be reasonably estimated or management believes

that the probability of loss is not probable.

SRCTEHEZA=A—HA

34. SRR ()

(b) A

(i) ANBZI

(ii)

TEASE B 2 W i R B R
ACEE T s A G 2 4y T 2 A B
32 A1 $01 ) 28 T8 A1 DA B0 52 A8 T 1) A
FEBRHETRE - EFIHAR
R R B 52 PR FL > Hoh B
A H AL T 2 S 050 D
BB KB RAT A TR -

HH T FE

TEASE B 2 HH R B -
3 P TE AN I 1 A 45 B2 Y % R R
A8 o A B AR L Al I E 5 B
AH R AT REAS SR - AR R AR
SRR o W R A LA R A
A A B A 5 1R R A T RE TR
K> RIS &1 R A s A
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. AR

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

2025
SR AR
HK$’000
T#x
Contracted, but not provided for: CLRT AR B -
Construction in progress for property, HHME - M Rz
plant and equipment e TS 2,292

A5 A R I AR IR

2024
ZEFTNE
HK$’000
T#C

339,279

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during

36. BBk T 5

(a) B 5 e S0 At O P ot 2 32 5
Fe i ERAh > A G A AR 47 B2 ¥ 5B

Wi AT AR 5
the year:
2025 2024
ZRB AR e 11 S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x
Rental payment to a company controlled [ A A W] — 44 7 e Ay
by a director of the Company — [ 2 W) X AT A 4 2,988 2,988
Purchases of products and installation B GV 18 B i KR
services from the GV Group R B 83,045 57,076
Construction income received/receivable from Tt~ & WA 2 W] 45 & i ok
a company controlled by the controlling P 0 A W] B SR A
shareholder of the Company* 54,000 =
Construction fees paid/payable to a company B}, JEAT A 2 7] 45 B % o
controlled by the controlling shareholder of 5 2 7] By Bt 582 il +
the Company* 59,049 -
Construction income received/receivable from T4t~ JHE WA 2 7] 322 % I o Y
a company controlled by the son of the 52 R SR U A
controlling shareholder of the Company* - 2,630
Construction fees paid/payable to a company B,/ HEAH A 2 7] 35 B 5 1Y
controlled by the son of the controlling e ke S ik
shareholder of the Company* 662,009 330,462
& These related party transactions constitute continuing s b %5 B W 7 A2 S R B LR 5 (3

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Note: Mt -

These transactions were conducted on terms and conditions

mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

PRpFEEAT o

S BT ARISE14A %) o

32 5 Ty YA B AT 49 5 ELAR Bl A B sk B
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36. BBk JT 28 5 (%)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) 7B 245 BN B #l i
the Group
2025 2024
R TTAR TR TU4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Short term employee benefits w08 B A 12,786 3,007
Post-employment benefits R Tk A% A 36 20
Total compensation paid to key AT EEERAEN
management personnel AR 12,822 3,027

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included

in note 9 to the financial statements.

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which are measured at fair value, the financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2025
and 2024 were financial assets stated at amortised cost and
financial liabilities stated at amortised cost, respectively.

37.

B0 2 5 T O O — 2 B 1 SO S o
FMRES o

58U 80 43 g i T L

W 20 7 (AL AL 2 1 (0 M
) Ah > R R R EZN
Sb o H o AR Y S T S LAY
S S 5 A 2 e P 7 A
A B ity S b A o
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
contract assets, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank loans approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities

of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or

liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank loans as at 31 March 2025 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is determined with reference to the Cash Values as

provided by the insurance company.

38. A T H 22 AP B A V-5 %

()

R O AG B RS Y - IR B
&~ BUWUR - SREE - AR -
JHC Al WAk B Lt S Y O~ BT
AR~ RS Bk R M P A £ £
Fewit B SRAT B A 23 1 B SEOL IR T B AR 7
FRE BN ZE TR R E -

< 4 £ AR O P DL RS B T
(5 780 28 75 8 ) B 3 B O ) W 7 T 32 S b R
it LR T L SHALR -

s B BRAT Bk A 30 580 0 4 4 1 {7 4
FA B B - 15 B U S 98 4 30T 1Y
TR B BUAT A R 7 B BN R AR B A i At
o RZBRZAEZA=Z4T—H o B
i > AR B 5 B 5B ST SR 2 8 A B
A TAE B ATEK -

BAFEFFARBER ST EZ A VET 2
HEPR B 2> w] B B 43t Y B R (R o
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. & @t T H 2 A Vi K A V%%

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

00 (1)

2 V-4 25 A i g

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instrument: %
y p

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2025

LA FAE 71 & -
REFZRE=H=+—H

2 At A 4 T 4 b T OEL B A P G AR

Fair value measurement using

141 DA 4 55 0 A Pt
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RS ERBIE WRAWBIE
Pt B B LUN € LN €
(B—#) (=8 (B=8) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#rx T#rx T#rx T#rx
Financial assets at fair value through A FIEFH A B A 4Rt
profit or loss B = = 11,852 11,852
As at 31 March 2024 AR UE=H=+—H
Fair value measurement using
M DLV & T A P A R
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REET S ERAEE AR BIE
i B A R LN 6 3 LN (6 3
(SE—#) (GE=%) GE=4) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7T T#T T#7T T#7
Financial assets at fair value through &/ F AR 25 04 it
profit or loss B = = 11,665 11,665
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. & @t T H 2 A Vi K A V%%

39.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer

into or out of level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities (2024: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured

at fair value as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

W BE (%)

2055 8 B ()

AR - 38— BB S A PR 0 T 0
SR > EL 4 i 7 4 LGOS A5
SHEABEHH (CR U ) o

RERZ-HFE=A=Z+THRSFDNE=
H=A—H s ACHE [0 S0 2 00 P At o
AL o

BN A TFHEERE=ZRNAFERT Y
iE :

HK$’000
Fix
Carrying amount at 1 April 2023 PR =N A —H R E 11,378
Gain from fair value adjustment recognised in A Al e A T W s P R A
other income and gains AR LT 287
Carrying amount at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 N R WE=H=+—H R U4FE
V9 H — H iR T 11,665
Gain from fair value adjustment recognised in A A A B Wi 2 HP e SR %
other income and gains O PR R 2k 187
Carrying amount at 31 March 2025 N B _HE=H=1+—H R 11,852

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, B s ol g8 5wk i

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, interest-
bearing bank loans, accounts and other receivables,
contract assets, accounts and other payables, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the

financial statements.

A SR Y 32 2 A i TR LS R A R A
A A~ EH B BT R - REUIRER &
ot EWOK ~ B RV - AT Rk B S Al e
bk~ Bl K B4 S DL K R B 4 o
UHb 25 < T L A P 2 A D R ¢
& o
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31 March 2025 ZFZhHFE=H=1—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised

below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

At 31 March 2025, it was estimated that an increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by HK$60,000
(2024: HK$4,867,000), arising as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on the Group’s floating-rate borrowings.
There would be no impact on other components of the

Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of the
analysis, it is assumed that the amount of variable-rate
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding throughout the whole year. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the reporting date of the next

financial year. The analysis was performed on the same

basis for the year ended 31 March 2024.

39. JH LB A B H B B SR (A1)

A 45 T < i B A A o R s R R
B~ 5 BB e i B B G LR o R AL
Sl [s) oA B4 R A B B Y SR o % SFIBOSRE
BEEWF -

A3 M B
74K 5% I i 5% ) 3 4 o) J g L LA 4
P 237 B P SRR B AT BA -

MR HEZAZ+—H > MR AR
TOO ] 5 5 (g 38 Ik A > i it A At v 4
BB A S AN > I A A P B A% e R % R B
6 WA 1 Im 60,0009 7T (2 PU4E ¢
4,867,000¥7C) > 5 A A 4R VR B R R AG
TR B X LT T o AR B RE 2 A
b 3R 43 NI JHE B2 B R o

e AR E 43 AT T AR R R i R
BAEMBE o MAaWms - BSRRE SR
A AR R VR AT 4 7 A B P AR
2 o OO 5 M5 ity 14 o = i A 8 3 1 2 7% —
B A 2T — 08 B R RS H I A
PV G 4 B 0 45 BRI REAN o AT IR E
FTIEZH Z 4 B4 RE R ] 35 e
T o
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to contract
assets, accounts receivable, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, restricted
cash and cash and bank balances. The Group’s maximum
credit risk exposure at the end of each reporting period
in the event of other parties failing to perform their
obligations is represented by the carrying amounts of
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group’s accounts receivable and contract assets from
contract works represent interim payments or retentions
certified by the customers under terms as stipulated in
the contracts and the Group does not hold any collateral
over these accounts receivable and contract assets. As the
Group’s customers in respect of contract works primarily
consist of government departments and developers or
owners with strong financial backgrounds, management
considers that the risk of irrecoverable receivables from

contract works is not significant.

At 31 March 2025, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 32% (2024: 37%) and 96% (2024: 96%)
of the total accounts receivable and contract assets were
due from the Group’s largest external customer and the
Group’s five largest external customers, respectively,

within the construction segment.

39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, #8458t H B ok (8)

1 £ ML BB

ACHR 5 R B R H SRR A - REOR
A~ R AT SRR - A K B I At 5
R > DA B 32 B B e B R BRAT
KR o M ELAh A% O7 R BEIEAT I R > AR
TP 45t o 90 O T TR 4 e v £ LA A
TR P Ak A S R L A H B 7R A R T A

L o R A O A R N AR R
AR o AR B 4 TR HE O & 4
B S ALYR A 40 3 AT BRSO Ak
WK PR S - HASE M R %
S ME SR R B £ A0 A AR AT ST o
TRACGE T £ 40 TRR & P 3 S R WO R
DA B B g of T 0% o S - IO L R
Hy AN BE MR 1B F 4 TR HE R i JEL B A K o

MR HAEZHA=1—H > HREREESS
> SRR R AR EER32% (2%
AR 2 37%) }96% (R IUAE 1 96% ) 43
B2 B A< 45 B d5 K AN P B A 45 181 1
KON > PRI A4 [ v B A R
JEVBE o
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach to provide
for impairment for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for impairment of all accounts receivable and contract
assets. To measure the ECLs, accounts receivable and
contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. With
the incorporation of forward-looking information in
the measurement of ECLs, management considered that
the ECL rate for the Group’s accounts receivable and
contract assets is minimal and therefore no provision for

impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets was

necessary as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

For financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (“Other Financial Assets”),
the Group applied the general approach to provide for
impairment for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9. None of
Other Financial Assets as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 were
overdue, and all balances were categorised within Stage
1 for the measurement of ECLs. An impairment analysis
is performed throughout the reporting period, which is
estimated by applying the probability of default approach
with reference to the risks of default of the debtors or
comparable companies. Management considered that
the ECL rate for the Group’s Other Financial Assets is
minimal and therefore no provision for impairment of
Other Financial Assets was made as at 31 March 2025 and
2024.

39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, #8458t H B ok (8)

1 £ B (%59)

A 45 [ © 8 F AL O X35 7 s U B o e
SIS O 9 Bk TR A5 R 4RUR B SR DA HE A >
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WIS SRR - AT S A o ARG R
5 FL A ol AR X 2 45 % P 23 iR 3 Al 2 0
WIRYEH o Fat SR MR AR - &
B8 I A DA RO sk HOTRR B 0
AR 00 B 365 AR S A 8 1R L BB Y A v 5 B
Be SCAEEERE ©

B EE AT K~ A sk B LAt 5 7 Y
i ([JCMbErmh e ) - ARBMERH—
e T 3 5 A s O 5 i e 2 2 0 9% T 8 A
B BB AR R A - Y F A
RZFZMAE=ZAZ4—H o B
flo b e - ELRTA &5 B0 2 8 2 B B Y
R BRI 58— P B o Y B 3T A T2
FTWAE AT - KR 2 7% B N\ BT BB A4 R Y
A 70 L o A R D 20 AR R T At o A
oy o AR SR L At L ) TR B4R
KRB > B R R HAER T
HEZH = HOB A 4 Rl E A A
o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 e ik

31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=4+—H
39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, %8 BE4% B H B2 5% 8ok (4)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and

year-end staging classification as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2025

1 £ B (%59)

S 1 L T A T B

TRERHZA =+ — R AR E R
(T ZEIETAIE I ERE - B I B JE 1500 25 R
ACHORE ) e A5 AR ) T A R R &
I fE BB > DA R AR R Bear 8 -

5 G UG S RS 7 A IR T AR o

HoFZRE=H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12881
B K 2B R
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BRB BREB PR [ H[ N it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#rx T#x T#r T#7x T#rx
Accounts receivable JE Wk - - - 245,964 245,964
Contract assets EHBE - - - 1,248,021 1,248,021
Financial assets included in FEATA FIE - JABRE R K
prepayments, other receivables  HoAl ¥ 7 ) 4 ¥ — IE K
and other assets — Normal* 13,533 = S = 13,533
Cash and cash equivalents — Bl B A A — WA
Not yet past due 1,741,032 - - - 1,741,032
1,754,565 - - 1,493,985 3,248,550
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 March 2024

£ £ R B (7))
5% 15 I 5 e 4E A I B ()
R-FZWE=ZH=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
I RRE ERUREEIIER ¢ VS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
inllidce i FEREB ek fit
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#r T T#r T T#r
Accounts receivable JRE Wi % - - - 75,155 75,755
Contract assets EHBE = = = 814,160 814,160
Financial assets included in At ATEARSOR ~ HEAREdsk &
prepayments, other receivables  JEAlh ¥ 7 Y 4 i B 7E — IE % *
and other assets — Normal* 121,467 = = = 121,467
Restricted cash — T WL B4 — A
Not yet past due 14,704 = = = 14,704
Cash and cash equivalents — B R B4 A — WA
Not yet past due 2,071,918 - - - 2,077,918
2,214,089 - - 889,915 3,104,004
e The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, & il T A TEAT R ~ At Rk e At Y

other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

B A5 £ IEU B B 00 A e R DA SROK R S >
FUT 0 260 i O O M) SR ROSR B TIEE ] o
R > % AR E R RS [
Bl -
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39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, %8 BE4% B H B2 5% 8ok (4)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk PB4 )R B

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and 7 £ [ 1 SR A S ) B R B IR % T i B
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains ST DR RSBl e Lok A
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines T4 BB L O ARGE R R S RE - R
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its W REMARBESHE o b - K
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In O ZYERITRE - AR Z T o

addition, banking facilities have been put in place for

contingency purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual TR FEF A A [ 4 £ A5 R I K ARG R AR
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s FRBHHEU > IRBEGARFBB SR E
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual (BLIE A HI R R B (8 3 B R R ) AR 58
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments e A R B AT R R EHE AR B AT R ) AR
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on S TR EBR M L H B 251 -

rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

Within In the year

one year or In the third to
on demand second year  fifth years Total

—AE W Bk #
WER R BEENE st

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
R R T#7T T#7T

As at 31 March 2025 MR- _H¥E=H=1+—H
Accounts payable JEA IR 3k 1,755,417 143,155 100,310 1,998,882
Other payables oAt JE A 3k 194,429 = = 194,429
Lease liabilities HE A 78,354 16,165 - 94,519
Interest-bearing bank loans R T &K 6,079 = = 6,079
2,034,279 159,320 100,310 2,293,909

As at 31 March 2024 MNoEWUE=H=+—H
Accounts payable HE AR 3K 903,171 = 171,027 1,074,198
Other payables At JE A5F K 55,910 = = 55,910
Lease liabilities A E 10,473 - = 10,473
Interest-bearing bank loans A B SR AT Rk 507,393 = = 507,393

1,476,947 - 171,027 1,674,974
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39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39, %8 BE4% B H B2 % 8Ok (4)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance the
Group’s overall capital structure through issuing new

shares as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing

debts.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Net debt includes total interest-
bearing bank loans less cash and bank balances shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following table is an analysis of the Group’s capital

structure as at 31 March:

BB

A AR B A BRI 2R R R B R A
T BELARE A rP A Y e BT > DR 42 P
FRAUALE > R P B 4 3 Y [ i o

Aoy ) S SR AT o AR AR T
P B — A8 43 - AN ) S5 B A K B
AR G A R B > NI 28 008 AT B
R R SRR BUA R - DA
R AN o

A4 97 20 R A £ AR bl R (DL
B DABE N W H A A RERS ) BE R A -
R A 7 A 6 B IR DU A R = 5 BT
Bk BB 6 B SRAT G BF TR AR
MR =A=+—HZ GRS

Interest-bearing bank loans (note 27)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and

it BRAT B (M iE27)
W Bl KB A A K % R

2025 2024
ZR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L F#C
6,008 486,700

restricted cash (note 24) Bl (M it24) (1,741,032) (2,092,622)
Net cash and bank balances Bl B SRAT B i A (1,735,024) (1,605,922)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BEON R R B AL RE 2R 1,735,065 1,617,566
Net gearing ratio FHARL LR N/ARE N/AAIE




THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

31 March 2025

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED Z{R T2EZERBER A F
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oA 5 e ik

SR HEZH =4
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  40. A2 w6l iy M BR R %

A R A 2 T S I AR A B B R 0 A Y R
W

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Fh B 2 e
Investments in subsidiaries B A w ] R 55,951 55,951
CURRENT ASSETS L ) % e
Prepayments, deposits and other assets FEAHERIE ~ 14 N HAE & 211 211
Tax recoverable AT W ] o T 161 =
Due from subsidiaries R WAL A Ja 2 ) ik T 645,784 643,001
Cash and cash equivalents B4 M B 420 6,006 6,088
Total current assets L Bl B AR 652,162 649,300
CURRENT LIABILITIES L) £ 4
Other payables and accruals A R A ik I HE 5 10,133 8,963
NET CURRENT ASSETS L B A 642,029 640,337
Net assets A 697,980 696,288
EQUITY B2
Share capital TR A 20,000 20,000
Reserves (note) Tkt (B at) 677,980 676,288
Total equity RS 697,980 696,288

21
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41.

31 March 2025 Z“ZE _-H#FE=H=1+—H
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  40. A2 vl /g M 8 R d % (4)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Mat :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AT EEREE T -
Share Retained
premium profits Total
JBe 3 ¥ A PR ¥ B ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TF#oT T#or
At 1 April 2023 AR _=ZFNA—H 574,485 100,323 674,808
Profit and total comprehensive income A N ¥ ) % 2 i A S AR
for the year - 101,480 101,480
2022/23 Final dividends TR TEAER R R = (100,000) (100,000)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 REFZWE=ZA=Z+H—HK
R TYENA—H 574,485 101,803 676,288
Profit and total comprehensive income A N ¥ ) % 2 i A S AR
for the year = 101,692 101,692
2023/24 Final dividends TR TIE R - (100,000) (100,000)
At 31 March 2025 REoRZHE=A=+—H 574,485 103,495 677,980
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41. S MasaE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for AMBERECR T HENAH - FAHEK

issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2025.

AL S T B -
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